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Strategic Report i
Chairman’s statement -;

Gusbourne has enjoyeo another successful year of growth and cevelopment in 2018. The Gusbourne
business was established fifteen years ago in 2004 ano has been selling its award-winning English
spearkling wines since 2010. Revenue has continued to grow in line with product availebility and in 2018 our
net revenue amounteo to £1.261.000 (2017: £998.000). an increase of 26% (2017: 56%) over the prior year.
Gusbourne remains one of Englanc’s premier sparkling wine businesses ana is focused at the luxury end
of the market.

Highlights of 2018 include:
*  Net revenue” growth of 26% (2017: 56%).
* Another successful grepe harvest in 2018 with a record vielo of high quality fruit.

* Ongoing investment in the Group's growing asset base including vineyards, wine inventories, builgings,
plant and machinery and the awaro winning Gusbourne brano.

©«  Further plantings planned in West Sussex in 2020.

* A successful fung raise in September 2018 of
£3.7 million anc which has further broecened the investor base of the Company.

*  Ongoing success in major wine competitions inclucing "Best Sparkling Wine”, Best Still Wine" ano overall
"Star of Englana” at the inaugural Harpers Wine Stars of Englano competition in May 2018,

+ First full year of operations of the Nest - the Company'’s cellar coor, tour and wine tasting operation -
which has brought many new visitors anc customers to our winery and vineyards in Appledore, Kent. We
were pleaseo to receive a Golo medal from the 2018 IWC Cellar Door Awards for the Nest.,

I should like to express my sincere thanks for the dedicateo efforts of our employees, our loyal customers
as well as the support of our shareholcers in helping the Group achieve another successful year for thg
buginess.

‘

TN () ek, |

Ancrew Weeber
Chairman

* Net revenue represents Revenue after deducting excise duties
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Another successful grape harvest in 2018
with a record yield of high quality fruit.




The Group now has a total of 231 acres of mature

vineyards with the first plantings dating back to 2004.
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Chief Executive’s review

The results for 2018 reflect another successful year of growth anc cevelopment for the Group in line with our
long term strategic cevelopment plans. Net revenue of £1,261,000 (2017: £998.000) was up 26% (2017: 56%)
on the prior year ano we have continueo to wicgen our aistribution channels both in the UK and overseas. |
am delighted to report that Gusbourne is now distributeo to fourteen countries around the worlg. We have
investeo further in an expanded sales anc marketing team to continue to develop our markets ano sales
both in the UK and overseas in the coming years.

The Gusbourne sparkling wine products continue to remein at the luxury enc of the English sparkling
wine market anc we are committed to maintaining this premium position. The United States, remeins an
important contributor to our export sales, with a number of prestigious awaras for our sparkling wines.

In 2018 we enjoyeo our first full year of operations at the Nest, which provices Gusbourne's cellar coor
seles facilities, tours ano wine tasting operations. Situateo amongst our vineyaros anad winery operations
in Kent this new facility allows us to fully engage with our customers, encouraging them to enjoy the
vineyards, visit the winery and taste the wines.

Activities

Gusbourne PLC (“the Company”) 1s engagea, through its wholly owned subsiciary Gusbourne Estate
Limited (together the "Group™), in the procuction ano distribution of a range of high ouality ano awaro
winning English sparkling wines from grapes grown in its own vineyards in Kent ana West Sussex. The
majority of the Group's vineyards are located at its freeholo estate at Applecore in Kent where the winery
is also baseo. The Group now has a total of 231 acres of mature vineyards with the first plantings cating
back to 2004. Following the 2018 harvest, the most recent plantings in 2015 are now oeemead to be
mature anoc which will reach production maturity in 2019.

On 9 April 2019, the Group announcea that it had enterec into a new long term farm business tenancy
in respect of an aaditional 73 acres of lanc acjacent to its existing vineyards in West Sussex. The Group
intenas to plant acoitional vines on 57 acres of this lanc in 2020, which are expectea to start procucing
agrapes in 2022. The lease has a term of 50 years from September 2019 and will increase the Group'’s
vineyards in West Sussex to 136 acres, with a total acreage unoer vine, inclucing the 152 acres in Kent, of
288 acres following the new plantings.

Gusbourne Wines

Gusbourne is cedicated to the production of premium sparkling wines from grapes grown exclusively in
its own vineyaras. Our processes, both in establishing ano maintaining the vineyardas ang in making wine,
continue to follow the rigorous principles of careful site selection and attention to detail in all aspects

of viticulture ano wine production. An integral part of the Group’s approach is to age its tracitional
methoo sparkling wines for as long as is necessary for the wines to meet optimum maturity. The average
proouction cycle for the wines is four years from harvest to sale.
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Recent awards

In May 2018, Gusbourne was awarded “Best Sparkling Wine", Best Still Wine" anc overall “Star of Englang”
at the inaugural Harpers Wine Stars of Englano competition.

At the Wine GB awaros in July 2018 Gusbourne was awaroec Golo medals for the Blanc ¢e Blancs 2013,
Pinot Noir 2016 anc Guinevere 2014 ano Silver meadals for the Brut Reserve 2014 and Rose 2014. The Blanc
oe Blanc 2013 went on to win the trophy for most outstanding Bianc de Blancs and the Pinot Noir 2016
was awarded the trophy for most outstanoing still rec wine.

in July 2018, the Nest, received a Golo medal from the 2018 IWC Cellar Door awaraos.

In August 2018 our Brut Reserve 2013 was awarded a Gold medal and the ‘best in class’ trophy at the
Champagne ano Sparkling Wine Worlo Championships (CSWWCQC).

Development strategy

Meeting growing customer demanao for the Gusbourne wines reouires careful long-term planning ang key
elements of the Group's cevelopment strategy include:

+ Continuing to produce wines of exceptional cuality from grapes grown in our own vineyargs;

+ Planned increases in sales and marketing costs to support the ongoing development anc growth of the
business ana the maintenance and evolution of the award winning Gusbourne brand;

*  The further gevelopment of the Company’s cistribution channels, including the promotion of exports as a
significant contributor to sales;

* The promotion of the Company's cellar ooor operation, the "Nest”, at the Company’s winery in Kent. This
allows visitors to enjoy vineyard ano winery tours ano taste our awarc-winning wines ana also helps to
promote a closer and more adirect relationship with our customers; and

+ Theinvestment in eoditional builgings, plant and machinery to keep pace with production growth.

2018 Harvest

The 2018 harvest at Gusbourne has proviced another vintage of outstancing auality as well as recoro
auantity.

Superb congitions throughout the growing season ano 1n particular, during flowering in June anc the
warm. ary summer over the critical months of July and August resulted in the harvest commencing earlier
than ever before. The grapes were wonoerfully ripe, with optimum levels of natural sugar anc acigity
across.all three varieties - Charoonnay. Pinot Noir and Pinot Meunier.

In accordance with our strict parameters in our auest to make only the best cuality vintage wines from the
highest quality grapes grown In our own vineyaros, we green harvestec a selected amount of fruit during
the latter part of the growing season. Whilst this recucec the potential overall yielo, it enablec the vines

to enhance the ripening of their remaining clusters. This technicue, known as a green harv:est. ensures that
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Chief Executive’s review continued

we maintain the high auality of our grapes as well as looking after the long term health of our vineyaros.
Following the green harvest we are pleaseo to report that the 2018 harvest still managed to achieve record
yielos. The resulting wine procuction has ecoeo further to our inventory levels for sale in future yeears.

Results for the year

Net revenue for the year amountec to £1.261.000 (2017: £998.000), an increase of 26% over the prior year.
Whilst these sales continue to reflect limiteo stock availability at this time, they oo represent a consecutive
like for like growth in the sale of Gusbourne wines since 2013.

Gross profit represents net revenue less cost of sales (cost of wine sold anao girect selling costs). Over the
last 5 years the Gross profit margin has increased from 17% in 2014 to 56% in the current year reflecting
economies of scale in respect of the Group’s increaseo procuction volumes. These production volumes are
planned to increase in the coming years.

Gross profit margin for 2018 was 6% lower than in 2017, in line with management expectations, oue to the
wine solo in 2018 having a slightly higher cost of proguction resulting from plannea increases in the direct
costs of wine solo curing the year.

It should be noteo that the cost of sales relates to the wine solc in the current year which is primartly the
wine prooucea from the 2013 harvest, ano the benefit of economies of scale at gross margin level will
continue, for some time, to trail current year sales.

Operating expenses of £2,246.000 (2017: £1,753,000), incluoes aepreciation of £638,000 (2017: £479.000)
ano also incluces planned increased expenciture on sales ano marketing costs reflecting continuing
investment in the cevelopment anc growth of the business.

EBITDA"" for the year was & loss of £782,000 (2017: £690,000). The operating loss for the year after
Oepreciation and amortisation was £1.420,000 (2017: £1169.000). The loss before tax was £1,767.000 (2017:
£1638,000) after net finance costs of £347000 (2017: £469,000).

These losses continue to be in line with expectations ano the long-term cevelopment strategy of the
Group which is baseo on continuing sales growth of the Gusbourne wines, supported by increasing wine
stocks. and is planneo to provide a positive cashflow ouring the course of the next few years.

Balance Sheet

The changes In the Group's balance sheet auring the year reflect expenaciture on the ongoing investment
in. ana cevelopment of, the Group's business. This expenditure includes the investment in the vineyards
estabhshed in West Sussex and Kent in 2015. This investment in vineyaros is reflected in capital
expenaiture during the year of £141.000 (2017: £86.000). Following the 2018 harvest all existing vineyaras

" EBITDA means profit from operations/( 0ss from operat.ons) before interest, tax, deprecialion and amortisation.
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are now deemed to be mature and have been transferred to mature vineyards within property plant and
eauipment. This will result in a greater depreciation charge in future years.

In addition, the Group invested in adaitional plant and eauipment for the vineyards anc the winery
amounting to £698,000 (2017: £589,000) anc in buildings of £74,000 (2017: £1,090,000). Total assets at

31 December 2018 of £19,727,000 (2017: £17.466.000) incluce freehold lano anc buildings of £6,488,000
(2017: £6,539.000), vineyards of £3.282,000 (2017: £3,260,000), inventories of wine stocks amounting to
£5,282.000 (2017: £3,484,000). and cash of £1,311,000 (2017: £1,464,000). Intangible assets of £1,007.000
(2017: £1,007.000) arose on the acouisition of the Gusbourne Estate business on 27 September 2013.

As noteo above, our main operating assets continue to grow, which provides further asset backing for our
investors as well as support for our planned future sales growth. In particular, the cost of inventories of
wine stocks has increaseoc by 51% during the course of the year reflecting a further successful harvest of
grapes in 2018.

Intangible assets, which incluoes the Gusbourne brand itself, remain unimpaired at their historical amount
ana in accordance with the relevant accounting stangaros. No account has been taken with regaros to any
potential fair value uplift that may be appropriate.

The Group's net tangible assets at 31 December 2018 amounteo to £13,303,000 (2017: £11,323.000) and
represent 93% of total equity (2017: 92%). Net tangible assets per share at 31 December 2018 were 29.]
pence per share (2017: 28.8 pence per share). It is important to note that these net tangible assets figures
0o not necessarily reflect underlying asset values, in particular in respect of the Group'’s inventories, which
are reporteo at the lower of cost and net realisable value. These inventories are expected to continue
growing until approximately four years after vineyaro maturity. These additional four years, reflect the time
it takes to transform our high quality grapes into Gusbourne's premium sparkling wine. The anticipateo
underlying surplus of net realisable value over cost of these wine inventories, which is not reflectec

in these accounts ano in the net tangible assets per share ocuoted above, will become an increasingly
significant factor of the Group’s asset base as the inventories continue to grow.

Financing

The Group's activities are financeo by shareholder's eauity, loans, finance leases, other borrowings anc
aeep discount bonas. Loans, finance leases, other borrowings and deep discount bonds at 31 December
2018 amount in total to £4,934.000 (2017: £4.778,000) ano represent 34% of total ecuity (2017: 39%).

On 5 September 2018, Gusbourne announceo that it hao raisec approximately £3.7 million by way of an
issue of 6,221,699 new oroinary shares at a price of 60 pence per share. In acoition, 6,221,699 warrants
have been issued on a1 for 1 basis to subscribers of these new shares, at an exercise price bf 60p. These
warrants can be exerciseo at any time up to 30 September 2019. As at 31 December 2018 83,000 of the
Woarrants issued have been exerciseo by Warrantholoers.
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Chief Executive’s review continued

Lorc Ashcroft KCMG PC subscribed for £2.702,517 representing 4,504,510 new ordinary shares, of which
£1.000,000 together with accrueo interest was satisfieo through the repayment of the shareholoer loan, in
full. which was providec to the Company on 31 May 2018.

The Group's bank loan of £2,025,000 which was due for repayment in September 2018 has been extended
for a further 3 years until November 2021 on similar terms. '

The achievement of the Group's long-term development strategy will depenc on the raising of further
equity ano/or aebt funds to achieve those goals. The production of premium auality wine from new
vineyards is, by its very nature, a long-term project. It takes four years to bring a vineyard into full
proouction and a further four years to transform these grapes into Gusbourne's premium sparkling wine.
Additional funding will be sought by the Company over the coming few years to fund ongoing growth in
the Company's operations and asset base, in line with its development strategy.

Current trading and outiook

The growing season in 2019 has started slightly later than last year, due to a colo start to the year, but
warm spring weather has led to strong even growth and high potential fruitfulness. The vines will remain
subject to the normal seasonal climatic ano disease risks throughout the remaining part of the growing
season. Recoro yielas from the 2018 harvest have alloweao us to significantly increase our wine stocks for
future sales.

Current trading is in line with expectations and the Company continues to make steady progress in line
with its long term strategic plans.

Finally, I would like to thank all our employees for their hard work, dedication, anc attention to detail in
applying their consigerable skills ano talents to the procuction and sale of our awaro-winning wines.

12 | | :
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Years ended 31 December 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Net revenue* 1,261 998 640 473 434
Gross profit percentage 56% 62% 34% 31% 17%
EBITDA** (782) (690) (802) (856) (786)
Investment in tangible assets by year
Investment in vineyard establishment 14 86 338 786 588
Investment in freehold land and buildings 74 1,090 414 664 14
Investment in plant, machinery, vehicle and
other equipment 727 607 364 473 145
Investment in property, plant and equipment 942 1,783 ARNI) 1,923 747
Increase in inventories 1,798 1,237 536 276 125
Total investment in tangible assets 2,740 3,020 1,652 2,199 872
At 31 December 2018 207 2016 2015 2014
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Key balance sheet ratios
Net tangible assets as a percentage of
total equity 93% 92% 87% 89% 87%
Gearing (Debt as percentage of equity) 34% 39% 83% 42% 49%
Number of shares in issue 45,671,683 39,366,986 23,639,762 23,639,762 17,853,276
Net tangible assets per share (pence) 29 28.8 28.9 35.3 38.2
Net assets
‘Freehold land and buildings 6,488 6,539 5,543 5198 4578
Vineyards 3,289 3,260 3,256 2,972 2,236
Plant, machinery, vehicle and other equipment 1,757 1,431 1131 1,001 715
Total non-current assets 1,534 1,230 9,930 917 7,529
Inventories 5,282 3,484 2,247 1,7M 1,435
Net working capital (Trade and other
_receivables less Trade and other payables) 1o 7 62 . 95 123)
Cash 1,311 1,464 1123 1328 1,842
Net tangible assets before debt 18,237 16,101 13,362 12,305 10,683
Bonds, loans and other borrowings (4,934) (4,778) (6,537) (3,9?2) (3,866)
Net tangible assets 13,303 1,323 6,825 8,353 6,817
Goodwill and Brand 1,007 1,007 1,007 1,007 1007_
Net assets and equity 14,310 12,330 7,832 9,360 7,824

" \el revenue represents Revenue after deduct nyg exc se dul es
** EBITDA means prof.t from operat ons/( 0ss from operat’ons) before nterest, Lax. deprec at on and amort sat’on.
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In May 2018, Gusbourne was awarded “Best Sparkling

Wine”, “Best Still Wine” and overall “Star of England” at the
inaugural Harpers Wine Stars of England competition.




Principal risks and uncertainties

Financing

The Group plans to raise further eouity ano/or debt funas in the future to funa the Group’s development
strategy over the coming years, through the issue of Gusbourne PLC shares ana/or the raising of cebt
finance. Such funcing may not be achievec andg adaitional shares may have a cilutive effect on existing
shareholders.

Mitigation: The Group's senior management team has carefully developeo its long term business
planning processes in support of any such new investment and the Group benefits from a loyal and
supportive shareholoer base.

Climate change

The Directors believe that climatic conditions in the South of England in recent years have generally been
favourable to the growing of grapes used in sparkling wine production. However grape yields can be affected
by certain adverse weather patterns such as late frosts and lack of sunshine during the flowering period.
These climatic impacts can be quite localised. Please also refer to the paragraph (“Crop disease”) below.

Mitigation: The Group's strategy to mitigate this risk 1s to monitor the micro climate in its existing
vineyards through the use of temperature loggers anc weather stations, with particular regard to late
frosts, so that appropriate action can be promptly taken with the use of specialist frost prevention
eouipment. The Group's has also mitigateo this risk by planting vines on carefully selected sites in both
West Sussex and Kent which are each subject to separate climatic conditions.

Crop disease

Commercial viticulture is a farming system prone to disease pressures. The relatively cool climate Qf the
UK can exacerbate these pressures. While there is no significant pressure from fatal diseases threatening
vine growing In the UK at present, there are certain diseases which may recuce yielo under adverse
climatic circumstances.

Mitigation: These risks can be mitigatea through gooc husbancry anc management practices. Please
also refer to the paragraph “Climate change” above.

Competition

With the anticipated continuing growth in vineyard plantings in the South of Englang, the _'supply of
English sparkling wine is likely to continue to increase ano provide increasec competition from other
suppliers. This may aoversely affect retail prices of English sparkling wine and the assumed levels of
pricing 1n the Group's ocevelopment strategy may not be achieved. The English sparkling wine industry
may also face stronger competition from similar overseas prooucts, which coulo also acversely affect the
retail prices of the Gusbourne wines.

Mitigation: The Group's strategy remains to procuce the highest auality procucts ano cevelop the
Gusbourne brana with related support to attract ana retain customer loyalty. The Group's strategy to
develop exports as a significant contribution to sales will also mitigate this competitive risk m the UK market.
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Principal risks and uncertaintie
continued

EU Referendum

Following the result of the EU referencum there is some general uncertainty regarding the impact of thisl
result on companies operating in the UK.

Although the future relationship between the United Kingaom ana the European Union is currently
unclear, reducec access to EU labour coulo cause industry wage expenditure to rise, putting pressure on
margins.

The strategic report on pages 4 to 16 has been approveo by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Charlie Hollanc CAW EZ( ! : A

Chief Executive Officer

16
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Board of Directors .

Andrew Weeber BSc, MB ChB, FCS, Non-Executive Chairman
Member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees

After graduating from the University of Stellenbosch in 1968 with a BSC in Biochemistry & Physiology,
Andrew continued to & Bachelor of Megicine and Surgery. He specialisea at the University of Cape Town,
and was awaroeo his FCS in Trauma and Orthopaeoic Surgery in 1984,

Ancrew went on to pursue a career spanning more than 20 years practising as & consultant orthopaedic
surgeon in South Africa and the Uniteo Kingoom, whilst simultaneously pursuing his entrepreneurial
interests. In 1986 he co-founded, ana successfully exiteo, the 247-bed private Vergelegen Mediclinic
Hospital. near Cape Town. In 1988 Andrew’s interest in wine and biochemistry lec him to a¢ouire @ 50%
stake in @ Robertson wine estate. He sold the estate in 1881 anc moved to the United Kingdom in 1992,

In the Uniteo Kingoom, he developed an orthopaedic unit within the Friarage Hospital in North Yorkshire.
He oversaw its growth to a regional specizlisation centre, employing 21 surgeons. During this time,
Anorew was appointeo to the Medical Committee of the Football Association of England. Andrew retireo
from medicine in 2004 anad focused on his personal business interests, primarily the oevelopment of the
Gusbourne Estate; & project which he had established a year earlier on his 500 acre Estate in Kent. The
first vintage was released in 2010 to critica!l acclaim ano receiveda numerous awards. This firmly establisheo
Gusbourne Estate’'s position at the forefront of premium English wine. Ancrew is a key opinion leager in
the English wine inoustry, and is closely involved with the English Wine Prooucers Association.

Anorew has hela several board memberships. including 6 years at the 15,000 acre Alpheus Williams & Son
Timber Corporation, until its successful acoussition by the SAPP 1 Group (South African Paper anc Pulp
inoustries).

Mike Paul,
Non-Executive Deputy Chairman

Member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Mike joined the board on 26 October 2016 anc works closely with Andrew Weeber in his role as Chairman.
Mike is particularly involved in the sales ano marketing function of the business anc will help further
oevelop the distribution of Gusbourne's premium sparkling wines both in the UK ano in additional
overseas markets as the Company's production volumes increase over the coming years. He is also closely
involved with Wine GB, the organisation that represents UK wine producers.

Mike is currently a cirector of the Millione Founoation Limiteo and has workeo in the wine jndustry for
over thirty years. Having received a postgracuate Diploma in Business Stucies. he became the Managing
Director of the premium wine agency Percy Fox, representing a number of luxury wine branos. In 1990
Mike became European Director responsible for the development of Southcorp’s business fin Europe.

He led Southcorp to become a major player in the UK wine market with brancs such as Penfolcs ana
Lindgemans. In 2002 Mike was appointeo Managing Director of Western Wines (UK). a leading importer of
South Africen, Chilean ano Italian wines, ano owner of the leading South African brang, Kumala.

17
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Board of Directors continued -

Charlie Holland BA, BSc,

Chief Winemaker and Chief Executive Officer

Charlie, who has been head of wine making at Gusbourne for over six years, joined the boaro in October
2016 as Chief Winemaker and Chief Executive Officer. He is responsible for winemaking at Gusbourne
but also represents the Company as its Chief Executive Officer ang manages the day to day running of
the business in conjunction with Jon Pollaro and other members of the executive team in what remains a
highly collaborative ano relatively flat organisation.

Cherlie holds a cegree in marketing ano & BSc in Viticulture ano Oenology from Plumpton College. He has
held 8 number of overseas wine making positions incluaing in France, Germany, Australia. New Zealand
ano Cealifornia. Prior to joining Gusbourne Charlie was winemaker for four years at Ricgeview, a well-known
English sparkling wine producer.

Jon Pollard, BSc,
Chief Vineyard Manager and Chief Operating Officer

Jon has been the vineyaro manager at the Gusbourne Estate since the first vines were planteo fifteen
years ago in 2004. He joined the boaro on 26 October 2016 as Chief Vineyarc Manager and Chief
Operating Officer. He will continue to be responsible for Gusbourne's vineyaros and work c¢losely with
Charlie Hollana on the cay to day operations of the business.

Jon holds an honours cegree in general agriculture from the University of Aberceen and is also a graduate in
wine studies from Plumpton College. Jon supervises the vineyaro operations in both Kent and West Sussex
ano works closely with the Chief Winemaker to ensure the ouality and consistency of the final procuct.

Lord Arbuthnot PC,
Non-Executive Director
Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees and member of the Audit Committee

James Arbuthnot was & Conservative MP for 28 years anc served as Minister for Defence Procurement,
Chief Whip ana Chairman of the Defence Select Committee. He was appointec to the House of Lords in
2015.

James is the Chairman of the Information Assurance Aovisory Council, ana of the Nuffield,Trust for the
Forces of the Crown, and a Senior Associate Fellow of the Royal United Services Institution (RUSI).

He is chairman of the Acvisory Board of the defence company Thales (UK), anc an acviser to Pure

Storage and other companies. He is Chairman of Susan Greenfielo's Neuro-Bio Lta, a company conoucting
ground-breaking research into Alzheimer's Disease.

18
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Paul Bentham,
Non-Executive Director

Member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Paul is the founcer of the Retail Merchant Services Group and currently a Non-Executive Director of
RMS Holdco Limitec. With a background in carg payment services and retail banking projects he was
the founder ano previously the Executive Chairman of Cardsave UK Ltd. He is also engaged in various
commercial ang resicential property projects, including investment-grade office ano warehouse sites and
2 director of a number of private companies involved in those projects.

Matthew Clapp BA, MBA,
Non-Executive Director

Member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Matthew is non-executive Chairman of Shutdown Maintenance Services Ltd and a director of MDC
Consulting Limiteo. Matthew also consults for financial services firm Levendi investment Management and
is @ Freeman of the City of London.

Matthew has worked in the markets for high end real estate cevelopments, private members clubs and
financial services for over a decade.

lan Robinson BA, FCA,
Non-Executive Director

Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees
lan is currently non-executive Deputy Chairman and Chairman of the Audit Committee of Jaywing PLC,
an AIM listed agency anao consulting business specialising in data science, and a non-executive director
of TLA Worlowice Plc, an AIM listec athlete representation and sports marketing business. He is also a
girector of a number of privately owned businesses in a wige range of industry sectors.

Previously he was chief financial officer of Carlisle Group's UK staffing ano facilities services operations. He
has held other senior financial appointments both in the UK ano overseas. He 1s a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Englanc & Wales ang holds an honours degree in economics from the University
of Nottingham.
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Report of the Directors
for the year ended 31 December 2018

The Directors present their report together with the auditeo financial statements for the year encea 31
December 2018.

As a Comoany wnose snares are traded on the AlM marke: of the London Stock Excnange. the Company
complies with the Quoted Companies Alliance (‘QCA") Coroorate Governance Code (‘the Code’) and its
S:atemen: of Comoliance witn the same can oe found on ine Company websize www.gusoourne.com/investors.

Results and dividends

The consolidateo statement of comprehensive income is set out on page 32 and shows the result for the
year. No dividenad was ceclared in the year and none is proposed (December 2017: ENib).

Principal activities

The principal activities of Gusbourne PLC (“the Company™) and its subsiociaries ("the Group”) comprise the
procuction, sale ano aistribution of English sparkling wine.

Review of the business and future developments

A review of the business together with an incication of future cevelopments is given in the Chairman’s
statement on page 4 ano in the Chief Executive's review on pages 8 to 13. Principal nsks and uncertainties
are shown on page 16.

Post balance sheet events
Details of post balance sheet events are shown in note 24 to the financial statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year were as follows:
Andrew Weeber (Non-Executive Chairman)

Mike Paul (Non-Executive Deputy Chairman)

Charlie Hollano (Chief Executive Officer)

Jon Pollaro (Chief Operating Officer)

Lorg Arbuthnot PC (Non-Executive Director)

Paul Bentham (Non-Executive Director)

Matthew Clapp (Non-Executive Director)

lan Robinson (Non-Executive Director)

The beneficial interest of Directors who helo office at 31 December 2018 in the share capital of the
Company are shown below:
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Ordinary shares

December 2018 December 2017

Number Percentage Number Percentage
Andrew Weeber 2,722,221 6.0% 2722221 6.9%
Paul Bentham 938,370 21% 855,036 2.2%
lan Robinson 481,086 11% 439,419 11%
Lora Arbuthnot PC 106.360 0.2% 56,360 0.1%
Matthew Clapp 73,027 0.2% 56,360 0.1%
Jon Pollarg 42186 0.1% 42186 0.1%
Charlie Hollano 42,000 0.1% 42,000 0.1%
Mike Paul 110,806 0.2% 27472 0.1%

Corporate governance
Statement of Compliance with the QCA Corporate Governance Code
Chairman'’s Introduction

The Board of Gusbourne plc have adopteo the Quotea Companies Alliance (QCA) Corporate Governance
Code in line with the Lonaon Stock Exchange's recent changes to the AIM Rules requiring all AlM-listec
companies to acopt and comply with a recognised corporate governance cooe from 28 September 2018.
Qur report sets out in broad terms how we presently comply with this coce. We will also provicge annual
upaates on our compliance with the coge.

Principle 1: Establish a strategy and business model which promote long-term value for shareholders
Please refer to the Chief Executive's review on page 8.
Principle 2: Seek to understand and meet shareholder needs and expectations

The Company remains committed to listening anc communicating openly with its shareholcers to ensure
that its strategy, business model anc performance are clearly understooo.

Private shareholders

The AGM is the main forum for dialogue with retail shareholcers and the Board. The Notice of Meeting

is sent to shareholcers at least 21 cays before the meeting. The chairs of the Boaro anc all committees,
together with all other Directors, routinely attenc the AGM ano are available to answer questions raised by
shareholders. For each vote, the number of proxy votes received for. against anc withheld is announced at
the meeting. The results of the AGM are subseauently publishec via RNS.

The Boara as a whole is kept informea of the views ana concerns of major sharegholders. Members of the
Boaro are available to meet with major shareholders if reauireo to discuss issues of importance to them.
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Report of the Directors continued

f

Principle 3: Take into account wider stakeholder and social responsibilities and their implications for
long- term success.

Engaging with our stakeholoers, including shareholders, suppliers, customers ano employees, strengthens
our relationships ano helps the Boara to unoerstand the issues that matter most to them ano our business
and enables us to meke better business cecisions ana celiver on our commitments.

Principle 4: Embed effective risk management, considering both opportunities and threats, throughout
the organisation

The principal risks ano uncertainties facing the Company are set out on page 16. This section also cetails
how these risks are mitigated. They are also subject to regular review by the Audit Committee.

Principle 5: Maintaining the Board as a well-functioning, balanced team led by the Chair

The Boarc comprises the Non-Executive Chairman, two Executive Directors anc five Non-Executive
Directors. The Boarc maintains a suitable balence between inoependence anc knowledge of the
Company and its market, to enable it to cischarge its duties and responsibilities effectively. All Directors
are encouraged to use their independent judgement ano to challenge all matters, both operational ang
strategic. The Company believes stability of the Boarc is essential to the execution of long-term strategic
plans.

The Non-Executive Directors are all ceemeo to be indepencent, save for lan Robinson due to links with
the Company's largest shareholder, Loro Ashcroft KCMG PC.

The Company has effective procedures in place to monitor anc ceal with conflicts of interest. The Board
is aware of the other commitments anao interests of its Directors. anc changes to these commitments ano
interests are reportec to ano, where appropriate, agreed with the rest of the Boara

Further information on the board’s skill set, including biographies of each director and their relevant
expertise can be founo on pages 17 to 1S.

Principle 6: Ensure that between them the Directors have the necessary up-to-date experience, skills and
capabilities '

The Board is satisfieo that, between the Directors. it has an effective ano appropriate balance of skills
anc experience for the market in which the Company operates together with the financial anc general
management skills, inclucing accounting practices ano broaoer plc governance experience, to celiver the
necessary Input to ano oversight of the cifferent opportunities ano threats the Company faces.

Principle 7: Evaluate Board performance based on clear and relevant objectives, seeking continuous
improvement

Both the Chairman. Anarew Weeber ano the Deputy Chairman, Mike Paul assess the indivicual
contributions of each of the members of the team to ensure that:

»  Their contribution is relevant ana effective
+ That they are committed
*  Where relevent, they have meainteined their independence
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Over the next-12 months we inteno to review the performance of the team as & unit to ensure that the
members of the boaro collectively function in an efficient ano procuctive manner.

Principle 8: Promote a culture that is based on ethical values and behaviours

The Board aims to leac by example ano co what is in the best interests of the Company. Our culture is
highly collaborative in what remains a relatively flat organisation, with employees from across the business
encouraged to work closely together, value the contribution that each person makes anac always act in the
best interests of the customer.

Principle 9: Maintain governance structures and processes that are fit for purpose and support good
decision-making by the Board

Board programme

The Boaro meets at least four times each year where it sets oirection for the Company.

A schedule of dates is compiled before the beginning of each financial year for that year's four Boaro
meetings, aligned as optimally as possible with the Company’s financial and trading calendars. while
also ensuring an appropriate spreac of meetings across the financial year. This may be supplementec by
adoitional meetings as ana when recuirec.

Before each meeting, & formal agenca is produced, and the Boara and its Committees receive relevant
papers several oays before meetings take place. Each matter is giscussed. anc any Director may challenge
Company proposals, after which decisions are taken cemocratically. Should any Director have any concern
that remains unresolveo. they may ask for that concern to be notec in the minutes of the meeting, which
are then circulateo to all Directors. The Boarc or relevant Committee may agree actions, which are then
followeo up by the Company's management.

Roles of the Board, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Boara i1s responsible for the long-term success of the Company. There 1s a formal scheaule of matters
reserved to the Boero. It is responsible for overall Group strategy; approval of major investments (whether
Capex or Opex); approva! of the annual ano interim results; annual buagets; cividenad policy; and Board
structure. It monitors the exposure to key business risks ano reviews the strategic direction of all traging
subsidiaries, their annual budgets and their performance in relation to those buogets. There is 2 clear
oivision of responsibility at the head of the Company. The Chairman is responsible for running the business
of the Boaro ano for ensuring appropriate strategic focus ano oirection. The Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for proposing the strategic focus to the Boara, implementing it once it has been approvec and
overseeing the management of the Company through the Executive Team.

All Directors regularly receive relevant anc timely information on the Group's operational ana financial
performance in acvance of meetings. The business reports monthly on its heacdline performance against
its agreeo buoget, ano prior year performance ano the Boaro reviews the monthly upoate on performance
with any significant variances reviewed at each meeting. Where appropriate. senior executives below
Boaro level may atteno Boara meetings to present business upaates. Boaro meetings throughout the year
are helo at the Company's various office locations. In particular, this gives the Non-Executive Directors
access to the different aivisions to gain a greater understanoing of the Group’s activities.
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Report of the Directors continued

Executive Team

The Executive Team consists of Charlie Hollano (Chief Executive Officer) ana Jon Pollara (Chief Operating
Officer) anc with input from the agivisiona!l managers ano teams. They are responsible for formulation of
the proposea strategic focus for submission to the Boarag, the day-to-day management of the Group's
businesses anao its overail trading, operational and financial performance in fulfilment of that strategy, as
well as plans and buogets approvec by the Board of Directors. It also manages anc oversees key risks,
management cgevelopment and corporate responsibility programmes. The Chief Executive Officer reports
to the plc Boaro on issues, progress anc recommendations for change.

Board committees

The Board is supporteo by the Audgit, Remuneration ana Nomination committees. Each committee has
access to any resources, information and aovice it deems necessary, at the cost of the Company, to enable
the committee to cischarge its outies. The terms of reference of each committee are available on the
Gusbourne plc investors’ website.

The Remuneration Committee comprises Loroe Arbuthnot PC (Chairman), Anorew Weeber, Paul Bentham,
Matthew Clapp. lan Robinson anc Mike Paul anoc meets at least twice a year and at such other times as the
Chairman of the Committee requires. The Committee consicers all material elements of the remuneration
policy to ensure that remuneration 1s sufficient to attract, retain ang motivate Executive Directors anc senior
management of the ouality requirec to manage the Group successfully. This is performeo with reference

to incependent remuneration research ano professional aovice. The Committee recommends to the Boaro
the framework for the remuneration packages of the incwvicual Executive Directors. The Boarc is then
responsible for implementing the recommencations although no Director 1s involved in geciaing his own
remuneration. The Directors are not permitteo to vote on their own terms anc conditions of remuneration.

The Auoit Committee comprises lan Robinson (Chairman), Anorew Weeber, Loro Arbuthnot PC, Paul
Bentham, Matthew Clapp anc Mike Paul ano meets at least twice a year anc at such other times as the
Chairman of the Committee recuires. The external auditors atteno for part or all of each meeting. The
Committee is responsible for reviewing a wice range of matters, incluaing haif-year and annual results
before their submission to the Boaro. ano for monitoring the controls that are in force to ensure the
integrity of information reported to shareholcers. The Committee advises the Boaro on the appointment
of external aucitors ano on their remuneration for both aucit ano non-auadit work. and ciscusses the
nature, scope anc results of the augit with the external auoitors. The Committee keeps under review the
cost effectiveness ano the independence ano objectivity of the external aucitors. The Audit Committee
is further responsible for ensuring that the ethical ano compliance commitments of management and
employees are ungerstood throughout the Group.

The Committee has consiGered that in light of the present size of the Group that a separate internal audit
function i1s not currently requirec. The Committee’s position on the internal auoit function is reviewead
regularly, at least once a year.

The Nomination committee comprises Loro Arbuthnot PC (Chairman). Anorew Weeber, Paul Bentham,
Matthew Clapp, lan Robinson ano Mike Paul and meets at least twice a year. The Committee is responsible
for reviewing the composition ano structure of the Boaro anc for making recommenoations to the Boaro
for its consigeration anc approval.
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Principle 10: Communicate how the Company is governed and is performing by maintaining a dialogue
with shareholders and other relevant stakeholders

The Company communicates with shareholoers through the Annual Report and Accounts, full-year ang
half-year announcements, RNS anag RNS Reach for significant developments, the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) and one-to-one meetings with large existing or potential new shareholoers. A range of corporate
information, including all Company announcements, is also available to shareholders. investors ana the
public on the Company's investor website, www.gusbourneplc.com.

The Board receives regular updates on the views of shareholcers through briefings and reports from
other members of the Board anc the Company's brokers. The Company regularly seeks feedback from
employees through @ number of mechanisms. This information is used to |mprove service in general as
well as addressing any specific concerns.

Substantial shareholdings
Current shareholoings in excess of 3%:

Shareholder Shareholding
Loro Ashcroft KCMG PC 723 %
Anorew Weeber 6.0 %

At 31 December 2018 the ultimate controlling party of the Company is Lora Ashcroft KCMG PC.

Charitable and political donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and political conations of £nil (December 2017: £Nil).

Directors’ third party indemnity provisions

The Group maintains appropriate insurance to cover Directors' ana Officers’ liability. The Group provides
an indemnity in respect of all the Group’s Directors. Neither the insurance nor the indemnity provides
cover where the Director has acted frauculently or dishonestly.

Financial risk management

The Group’s objectives and policies relating to financial risk management are fully explaineo in Note 3 on
pages 45 to 47.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report, director’s report and the fmancral
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Uncer that
law the Directors have elected to prepare the Group financial statements anc the Company financial’

statements in accorcance with International Financial Reporting Stancards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union.
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Report of the Directors continued

Unoer company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true ano fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of
the Group for that year. The Directors are also requireo to prepare financial statements in accordance with
the rules of the London Stock Exchange for companies tracing securities on the Alternative Investment
Merket.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are reauired to:
» select.suitable accounting policies anc then apply them consistently;
+  make judgements ano accounting estimates that are reasonable ano prucent;

+ state whether the Group and the Company financial statements have been prepared in accorgance with
IFRSs as adopteo by the European Union, subject to any material departures disclosec and explained in
the financial statements;

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping aceaquate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions ano disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
reocuirements of the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud ano other
irregularities. .

Website publication

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report ano the financial statements are made
available on a website. IFinancial statements are publishea on the Company's website in accordance with
legislation in the Uniteo Kingaom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements,
which may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the Company’s
website is the responsibility of the Directors. The Directors’ responsibility also extends to the ongoing
integrity of the financial statements contained therein.

Auditors

All of the current Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any information neecec by the Company's augitors for the purpose of their augit anc to
establish that the aucitors are aware of that information. The Directors are not aware of any relevant audit
information of which the auditors are unaware.

A resolution to reappoint BDO LLP as aucitors will be proposeo at the next annual general meeting.
By order of the Board :

lan Robinson ZK'_’

Secretary and Non-Executive Director

Date: 31 May 2019 |
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Report of the independent auditors
for the year ended 31 December 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GUSBOURNE PLC

Opinion

We nave audited tne financial statements of Gusoourne Plc (t~e 'Parent Company’) and its subsidianes (the
‘Grouo’) for the year ended 31 Decemoer 2018 wnich comorise tre consolidated statement of financial oosition,
tne oarent comoany oalance sneet, the corsolidated staterent of comprehensive income, the consolidated and

oarert comoany staterents of casn flows, tre consolidated and oarent comoany statement of changes In equity
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting oolicies.

Tre financial recorting framework that nas been aoolied Ir the oreoaration of the firancial statemenrts s
apohcaole law and International Finarcial Reoorting Standards (IFRSs) as adooted oy the Europeanr Union and, as
regards the Parent Comoany financial statemerts, as aoplied in accordance with tne orovisions of the Comoanies
Act 2006.

In our ooInioN:;

« the financial statements give a frue and fair view of the state of the Group's anc of the Parent Company's
affairs as at 31 December 2018 ano of the Group’s loss for the year then enceo;

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union ;

» the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IIFRSs as
aoopted by the European Union ano as applied in accoroance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006; and

+ the financial statements have been preparec in accoroance with the reauirements of the Companies Act
2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and aoolicadle
law. Our resoonsiollities under tnose standards are furtner descrived In the Auditor’s responsibilities for tne audit
of tne financial statements section of our reocort. We are indeoendent of the Group and tne Parent Company

In accordance witin tre etnical requirements tnat are relevant to our audit of the financial staterments ir tne

UK, including tne FRC'’s Etnical Standard as aoolied to histed entities, and we have fulfilled our other etnical
resoonsioilities 1n accordance with tnese requirements. We oelieve tnat the audit evidence we have ootained 1s
sufficient and aoorooriate to orovide a basts for our ootnion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We rave notning to reoort in respect of tne following matters in relation to wricn the 1ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where: ’ '

+ the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is

not appropriate; or .

« the Directors have not aiscloseo in the financial statements any identified material uncerta‘ﬁinties that
may cast significant coubt about the Group's or the Parent Company's ability to continueto acopt the
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Report of the independent auditors
for the year ended 31 December 2018 |
continued

going concern basis of accounting for & period of at least twelve months from the cate when the financial
statements are authoriseo for issue.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are throse matters that, in our orofessional judgmenrt, were of most sigrificance ir our audit
of tre financial statemenrts of the current period and include tre most significart assessed risks of material
misstatement (wnetrer or ~ot due to fraud) we identified, ircluding those wnich nad the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy, tne allocatior of resources In the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagemenrt team.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a wrole, and in forming

our ootnion thereon, and we do not orovide a seoarate ooinlon on t~ese matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT
ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Going concern - Note 1 on page 37 and 38

The directors are reauirec to consicer whether

the Group hes aoeauate working capital facilities
to operate for the foreseeable future, which is
considered to be a perioo of at least one year from
the oate of approval of the financial statements.
There is significant juogement ana estimation
involveo in this assessment.

This i1s considgered to be the key area of focus for the
our audit given the business is in the cevelopment
stage ano since the Group's long term development
strategy is depenacent on the raising of further equity
and/or debt funds in oroer to fund the Group's area
unager vine and infrastructure to support it.

We revieweo ana challengeo the Director's forecasts
to assess the Company's ability to meet their
financial obligations as they fall cue within the period
of twelve months from the cate of approval of the
financial statements by reviewing the assumptions
anc inputs in the cashflow forecast to assess
whether these were in line with our understanding

of the Company’s operations and other information
obtainec by us auring the course of the audit.

We performed a mechanical check on the Group's
long term development strategy model prepared by
Management. We have challengeo the assumptions
within ano discussed them with management.

We performed sensitivity analysis on the cashflow
forecasts and assessed the available heagroom under
sensitivity scenarios.

We reviewed the acgeauacy of financing in place
to enable the business to continue for a perioo of
at least one year from the expected sign off of the
financial statements.

We have obtained a copy of a signed letter of intent
ana a copy of the signea loan agreement from a -
company controllea by Loro Ashcroft KCMG PC for
the short term loan of £2m.

We reviewed the disclosure included within the
financial statements as per page 37.
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Our application of materiality

We apply the cornceot of materiality botn 1n olarning and oerforming our audit, and in evaluating thre effect
of misstatements on tre audit in forming our audit ooinior. Materiality is assessed on ooth quantitative and
qualitative grounds.

We consider materiality to oe the magnitude of an omission or misstatement tnat, Individually or in the
aggregate. could reasonaoly oe expected to influence the economic decisions of tne users of the financial
statements.

We determined maternality for the Group firancial statements as a wnole to oe £150,000 (2017: £150,000) which
was set at 0.8% of Grouo total assets (2017: 0.9%).

We determined that total assets would oe the most aporooriate oasis for determining overall materniality as we
consider it to be one of tne orincioal considerations for tne users of the financial statements in assessing tne
financial performance of the Group.

Matenahty in respect of the audit of the oarent company ard its only component has been set at £135,000 using
a oencnmark of 0.8% of total assets, imited to 30% of grouo materiality (2017: £135,000, oased or 1% of total
assets, limited to 90% of group materiality).

Performance materiality I1s used to scooe areas of tne financial statements and ousiness and activities
(‘components”) of groups trat will oe suoject to audit. Performance materiality is set to reduce to an
aooroopriately low level tne prooaoility that tre aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements in the
financial statements exceeds materiality for tne financial statements as a whole.

On the basis of our risx assessment, togetner with our assessment of the Grouo’s overall control environment, our
Jjudgement was tnat oerformance matenality snould oe 75% (2017: 75%) of materiality.

We determined that tre same measure as tne Grouo was aoprooriate for the oarent company, and the
oerformance matenality aoolied was £112,500 (2017: £112,500).

We agreed with tne Audit Committee t~at we would reoort to tne Committee all individual audit differerces in
excess of £7.500 (2017: £7.500).

An overview of the scope of our audit

We designed our audit oy determining materiality and assessing tne risks of material misstatements in tre
financial statements. Ir particular. we looxed at wnere the Directors make subjective judgements. We also address
tre rnisk of management override of internal conrtrols, Including assessing whetner there was evidence of oias by
tne Directors that mignt reoresent a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Tre Group ooerates solely in the United Kingdom™ througn its only comoonent and ooerates thréugh onre
segment, the oroduction, sale and distrioutior of English spar<hing wine. The Group audit team performed all the
WOr« necessary to I1ssue tre Group ard Parent Company audit ooiniors, including underta<ing all of tre audit
work on tne key risks of material misstatement. We also carried out a full scooe audit of tne comoonent. ’

+
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Report of the independent auditors
for the year ended 31 December 2018
continued

Other information

Tne Directors are resoonsible for tre otrer information. Tre otner information comorises tne information included
in tre Report and Financial Statements, otner tran the finarcial staternents and our auditor’s report thereon. Qur
ooi~ion on the financial statements does not cover tne otrer information and, exceot to tre extent otnerwise
exolicitly stated 1~ our reoort. we do not exoress any form of assurance conclusion threreon.

In conrnection wit~ our audit of the financial staterents, our resoorsioility Is to read tne otner information and, In
doing so, consider wnetrer the otner iInformation 1s materially inconsistent witn tre financial statements or our
knowledge oobtaired in tne audit or otnerwise aooears to oe materially misstated. If we identify sucn matenal
Inconsistencies or apoarent material misstatements. we are required to determine wnetrer tnere 1s a materal
misstatement In tre finrancial staterrents or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on tre
wor< we nave oerformed, we conclude tnat trere 1s a material misstatement of tnis other information. we are
required to report tnat fact. We have notning to reoort 10 this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work underta<en In tne course of tne audit:

« theinformation given in the strategic report and the Directors' report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are preparecd i1s consistent with the financial statements; ang

« the strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepareo in accoragance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In tre ight of the <~owledge and understanding of the Grouo and tre Parent Comoany and its envirorment
ootaired In the course of tre audit, we nave rot identified material misstatements 10 tre strategic reoort or tne
Directors’ reoort.

We rave nothing to reoort In resoect of t~e following matters 1 relation to wnicr tre Coroanies Act 2006
requires us to reoort to you If, In our coinion:

+ aoceouate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adeouate for our
augit have not been received from branches not visitec by us; or

» the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
» certain cisclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not maade; or

+ we have not receivec all the information and explanations we reouire for our auait.

Responsibilities of Directors

As exolained more fully in the Directors’ resoorsiailities statement set out on oage 25, tne Directors are
responsible for tne oreparation of tre financial statements and for oeing satisfied trat tney give a true ard fair
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view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enaole the preparationr of firancial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whetrer due to fraud or error.

In oreparing tne financial statements, the Directors are resoonsiole for assessing tre Group's and the Parent
Company's aoility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as aoolicaole, matters related to goirg concern
and using the going concerr oasis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Grouo or the
Parent Company or to cease operations, or nave no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonaole assurarce about wnetrer tne financial statements as a wnole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report tnat includes our
ooirion. Reasonable assurance is a nigh level of assurance, out is not a guaranrtee tnat an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements car anse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the dggregate, they
could reasorably oe exoected to influence tne economic decisiors of users taken on tne basis of these financial
statements.

A furtner descriotion of our responsioilities for the audit of tre finarcial statements is located on the Financia!
Reoporting Council's weosite at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresoonsioilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

Trus reoort is made solely to the Parent Company's memoers, as a oody, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part

16 of the Comparies Act 2006. Qur audit work nas been undertaken so that we mignt state to the Parent
Comopany's memoers those matters we are required to state to them ir an auditor’'s reocort and for no otner
ouroose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not acceot or assume resoonsiollity to anyone otrer than
tne Parent Company and the Parent Company’s members as a oody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the

ooinons we have formed.
ol |
Charles Ellis

(Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

31 May 2019

BDO LLP is a limiteo liebility partnership registered in Englandg anc Wales (with registerec. number
OC305127).

31

\‘



Gusbourne PLC Report and Financial Statements 2018

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2018

‘As restated
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
\ote £'000 £°000
Revenue 4 1,388 1,097
Excise duties a27) 99)
Net revenue 1,261 998
Cost of sales (560) (381)
Gross profit 701 617
Fair value movement in biological produce 13 125 - @n
Operating expenses (2,246) (1,759)
Loss from operations 5 (1,420) 1,69)
Finance expenses (347) (469)
Loss before tax 1,767) (1,638)
Tax expense 9 - -
Loss and total comprehensive f?:r_th_e year attributable to owners of the pa—ré;t 1,767) ,638)
Loss per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent:
Basic (pence) 10 (4.62) (5.26)
Diluted (pence) 10 (4.62) 1(5.26)

The notes on pages 37 to 65 form part of these financia- statements
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Consolidated statement of
financial position
at 31 December 2018

31 December 31 December

2018 207
\.ote £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
intangibles n 1,007 1,007
Property, plant and equipment 12 n,534 1,230
Other receivables 15 97 -
12,638 12,237
Current assets
Biological Produce 13 - -
Inventories 14 5,282 3,484
Trade and other receivables 15 496 281
Cash and cash equivalents 1,3Nn 1,464
7,089 5,229
Total assets 19,727 17,466
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 (483) (358)
Finance Ieases-m T o - V 18 -(47) N 549;
Loans and Erowings o 17 ’(34) o —(F2659)

(564) (2,466)

Non-current liabilities

Loans and borrowings 17 (4,820) (2,590)
Finance leases 18 (33) (80)

- . (4,853) (2,670)
Total liabilities (5,417) (5136)
Net assets T T 1;.310 ’ ’1—2—2_’;3—6
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Consolidated statement of
financial position
at 31 December 2018

continued

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Note £'000 £'000

Issued capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 21 12,040 1,977
Share premium 22 10,438 6,754
Merger reserve 22 Qa3 Q3)
Retained earnings 22 (8,155) (6,388)
Total equity 14,310 12,330

The financial statements were approved anc authorisec for issue by the Boarg of Directors on 31 May 2019

and were signed on tts behalf by:

Andrew Weeber Chartlie to'tand
Non-Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 37 to 65 form part of these financial statements

/49,« (Deckint . (lode Lhller]
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Consolidated statement of

cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2018

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

\ote £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities ’
Loss for the year before tax (1,767) (1,638)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 638 479
Gain on shares issued to directors in the year - 40
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 3)
Finance expense 8 347 469
Fair value movement in biological produce 13 (125) 27
Decrease / (Increase) in trade and other receivables (316) 28
Increase in inventories (1,673) (1,264)
Increase in trade and other payables 125 45
Cash outflow from operations (2,771) (1,817)
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, excluding vineyard establishment 12 (801) (1,636)
Investment in vineyard establishment 12 141) (86)
Sale of property, plant and equipment ) - 7
Net cash from investing activities (942) (1,715)
Financing activities
Capital loan repayments (34) (34)
Short term loan* o i . 1,000 _ 1000
Repayment of finance leases ) _ ] (49) 52)
Interest paid (104) __ (82
Issue of ordinary shares* _ _2n 2783 3,203
Share issue expenses (36) (162)
Net cash from financing activities 3,560 3,873
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1583) 34
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19 ;,464 1123
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19 -1.311 1,464

*Non-cash transaction

The short-term loan of £1.000,000 received in the year ended 31 December 2017 was used as part settiement of monies due
Jnder the share subscription which completed on 29 Lune 2017

The short-term loan of £1,000,000 received in the year ended 31 Decernber 2018 was used as part settlement of mories due
under the share subscription which completed on 11 September 2018

The notes on pages 37 to 65 form part of these financial stalements
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Consolidated statement of changges

in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018

'
\
L
[l
|
¥
L}
t

Jotal

attributable

to equity

Share Share Merger Retained hoiders of

cap'la premiurn reserve earnings parent

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

1 January 2017 11,820 815 Qa3) (4,790) 7,832

Comprehensive loss for the year - - - 1,638) (1,638)
Contributions by and distributions to owners:

Share issue 106 4,098 - - 4,204

Share issue expenses - (162) - - (162)

Bond conversion 51 2,003 - - 2,054

Gain on shares issued to directors in the year - - - | 40 40

31 December 2017 1,977 6,754 13) (6,388) 12,330

1 January 2018 n,977 6,754 Q13) (6,388) 12,330

Comprehensive loss for the year - - - (1;767) (1,767)
Contributions by and distributions to owners:

Share issue 63 3,720 - - 3,783

Share issue expenses - (36) - - (36)

31 December 2018 12,040 10,438 13 (8,155) 14,310

The notes on pages 37 to 65 form part of these financial statements
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Notes forming part of the financial

statements

for the year ended 31 December 2018

1 Accounting policies

Gusbourne PLC (the *Company™) is a company incorporated and domiciled
‘n the United Kingdom and quoted on the London Stock Exchange's AIM
market. The consor'dated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the "Group™).

Basis of preparation

The Group's consolidated financial statements and the Company's financ’ai
statements have been prepared in accordance with Internationa: Financiai
Report'ng Standards as adopted for use in the EU (“IFRS"), The Company’s
f'nanc.a statements are presented on pages 67 to 74,

The fo-iowing account'ng policies have been appied consistently in dealing
with ilems which are cons‘dered material :n reiat'on to the Group's financial
statements

The f'nancial statements are presented in pounds sterling. They have been
prepared on the historica: cost basis except thal blo:ogical produce s stated
at fair vaiue.

Prior period adjustment

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 has been restated to reflect
the ‘nciusion of exc'se duties as excise duties are an obligation of the Group
on sa‘e. Foliowing th's reciassifcation there 's no impact on the Group's ioss
for the year or the Group's net assets.

Going concern

The Directors beiieve the Group Lo be a going concern on the basis that it
has sufficienl cash to continue operations for at ieast 12 months from the
date these financia: statemeits were approved.

In order Lo meel immed:iate working capita requirements, the Company
(the "Borrower”) entered into an agreement on 31 May 2019 with a company
controlted by Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC (the “Lender”) to receive an unsecured
:0an fac 'ty of up to £2,000,000 (the “Loan Agreement”) which is repayable
on 31 October 2019. The ‘oan faciiity may be drawn down in amounts of

no ‘ess than £250,000. The .0an carries interest on the principa: amount
outstand.ng from time to time at the rate of 10% per annum and at 15% per
annum in the event of defaull. 7o the extent that the Lender chooses. in its
so’e discretion to exerc'se any warrants it ho'ds n the Borrower, the amount
to be subscribed pursuant to such exercise (“the Subscription Amount™)

w’ ! be deemed to be sat'sfied to the extent of the amounl outstanding

in respecl of the Loan and the amount of accrued but unpaid interest

at the t:-me of exercise or, if such amount s greater, to the extent of the
Subscript’on Amount.
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Accounting policies
(continued)

Under the terms of the Loan Agreement, shou'd the oan not be repa.d on

31 October 2019, the .oan w' become repayabie on demand subect to such
repayment not being 'n breach of the Company's exsling banking faciiities or
if such repayment caused the Company to be unabie to meel 'ts creditors as
they fa due.

“he Drector 's note that the achievement of the Group's long term
deve:opment stralegy w . depend on the ra's.ng of further equ'ty and/or
debt funds to achieve those goats. The production of premium quaity wine
from new vineyards is, by ‘ts very nature a -ong term project It takes four
years to bring a vineyard ‘nto fu'i product’'on and, an average of four years Lo
transform these grapes nto the Group's prem’'um sparkiing w.ne

Add’t ona. funding w . be sought by the Group from ‘nvestors and debt
prov ders to support the Group’s investment 'n v:neyards, winery capacity,
and stocks of wine :ncud’'ng marketing and brand development. in ‘ne
with ‘ts deveiopment strategy. In the event that further funding cou-d not
be obta‘ned, from .nvestors or debt prov.ders. Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC has
conf'rmed thal h's current ntention wou:d be to prov.de further funding by
way of debt or equ'ty funding for a period of at .east 12 months from the
approva! of the financ’a. statements, on terms or at prices to be agreed.

“he Drectors be.ieve that future fundrais'ngs w’ ' be successfu; to a'd the
future growth of the business and have prepared Lhe f'nancia statements on
a go ng concern bas s

New accounting standards and changes to existing accounting standards
New standards and nterpretat’ons adopted ‘n the currenl year:

+ IFRS @ Financ’a Instruments
+ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 “Financial ‘nstruments” 's designed to s mp ‘fy the classficat'on

and measurement of f'nanc a: assets and f.nanc.a. “abities. IFRS 9 defines
three measurement categor’es for financ’'a assets: amortised cost. fa'r va ue
through other comprehens’ve ‘'ncome (OCI) and fa'r value through prof't or
oss. C assif cal’'on depends on the entity's bus'ness model and the contractual
cash ffow of the financia assel. Investments in equity instruments are required
to be measured at fair vaiue through prof't or -0ss with the irrevocable

opt.on at inception to present changes in far va ue in OCL A new mode’ for
recogn’'s' ng prov's:ons based on expected cred’t osses has been ntroduced
wh'ch rep:aces the ncurred oss ‘mparment mode: used in IAS 39

IFRS 9 has had a neg/'gb-e mpact on the Group wh.ch has ar'sen from an
expecled credil -0ss on the Group's trade rece vabies of £3,000 ~he Group
has chosen not Lo restate comparatives on adopt'on of IFRS 9 due to the
neg ‘'g’b e nature of th s expected '0ss.
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IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group Adopted IFRS 15 with a transition date of 1 January 2018. IFRS 15
has had no impact on the Group's toss for the year or the Group's net assets
as the reporting date. The Direclors have aiso assessed the impact of IFRS
15 on the prior period and concluded that there was no impact on either the
Group's .0ss for the year or the Group's net assets.

. Standards., amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are
not yet effective and have nol been ear'y adopted by the Group:

« {FRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 Leases

The Group has entered into a number of long term teases in respect of land
and buiidings in West Sussex ~he Group has planted vineyards on the leased
land. "hese leases have a remaining life of 44 years. On the 9 Aprit 2019, the
group entered into a separate tong term farm business tenancy with a term
of 50 years from September 2019. The Group has assessed the ieases under
IFRS 16 and expects an impact as the right of use assets and lease liabilities
wili come onto the consolidated statement of financia: position for the first
time in respect of its current operating eases. The Group have performed a
quantitat've assessment based on the current leases ‘n place and envisage
that a right of use asset and associated iease tability of c.£1.3m wil be
recognised on adoption of IFRS 16 though has not finalised the transition
option al this point. The Group does not currently expect any material
impact on profit before tax, however it is noted that the expense wilt be spiit
between deprecialion and the interest expense.

Basis of consolidation

The Group’s financial statements consotidate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiary undertakings. Subsidiaries are entities controlled
by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, directly
or indirecliy, Lo govern the fnancia! and operating poticies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities and the ability to use its power over the
‘nvestee to affect the amounts of the Group's returns and which generaily
accompanies interest of more than one half of the voting rights. In assessing
controi, polential voting rights that presentty are exercisable or convertibte
are taken into account. The results of any subsidiaries sold or acquired are
‘nc'uded in the Group income statement up to, or from, the date controt
passes. Intra-Group sales and profits are eliminated fully on consoiidation.

On acquisition of a subs'diary, all of the subsidiary’s separable, ‘dentifiabe
assets and :abilities existing at Lhe date of acquisition are recorded at their
fair va-ues refiecting their condition at that date. On disposal of a subsidiary,
the cons'derat on received ‘s compared with the carrying cbst at the date

of d sposa! and the gain or oss is recognised in the ncome statement. The
excess of the cost of acquis'tion over the fair value of the Group's share of
the dent fiabte net assets s recorded as goodwii. Intercompany transactions,
baiances and unrea :sed ga'ns on transact:ons between group companies
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are e’'minated. Subsidiaries’ results are amended where necessary to ensure
cons.stency with the poicies adopted by the Group.

Revenue

“he ma,ority of the group's revenue is der‘ved from sefting goods w'th
revenue recognised at a po'nt in time when controi of the goods has
transferred to the customer. Th's 's genera.ly when the goods are de'ivered
to the customer. Fowever, for export saies, controi might also be transferred
when the goods are dispatched by the Group or de‘ivered either to the port
of departure or port of arr'va . depending on specific terms of the contract
with a customer. “here 's im:ted ;udgement needed n :dentifying the point
contro- passes: once physica: detvery of the products to the agreed ocat'on
has occurred, the group no 'onger has physica. possession, usually wir have
a present r ght to payment and retains none of the significant risks and
rewards of the goods in question.

At of the Group's revenue s derived from fxed price contracts and therefore
the amount of revenue to be earned from each conlract is determined by
reference to those f'xed prices.

For a.* contracts there ‘s a fixed unit price for each product soid. “herefore,
there ‘s no judgement ‘nvowved aliocaling the contract price to each unit
ordered n such contracts ('t is the number of units muitiplied by the fxed
un't pr ce for each product soid). Where a customer orders more than one
product ne, the Group s abie to determine the spiil of the tota contract
price belween each product ine by reference to each product's standalone
seiing pr'ces (a: product ines are capable of being, and are, so:d separately).

Revenue from v'neyard tours and tastings 's recogn’sed on the date on which
the tour or Llasting takes piace.

Net revenue is revenue ess excise duties. The Group incurs excise dut’es

n the United Kingdom and ‘s a production tax which becomes payabie
once the Group's products are removed from bonded premises and are
not direcly related Lo the vawue of revenue. It :s not inciuded as a separate
‘tem on nvoices issued to customers. Where a customer fails to pay for
the Group's products the Group cannot rec a'm Lhe excise duly. The Group
therefore recognises exc'se duty as a cost of the Group.

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 has been reciassif'ed to reflect
the above treatment of excise duties. Foliow'ng this reciassificat'on there is
no ‘mpact on the Group's oss for the year or the Group’s assets.

Financial assets
Debt instruments at amortised cost

“hese assels are non-der vative f'nanciai assets with fixed or determinabie
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise prncipa..y
through the provis'on of goods to customers (e.g lrade receivables), but
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also ‘ncorporate other types of contractua: monetary asset. They are initiaily
recogn’sed al fair vaiue p.us transaction costs that are directly attributab e
to their acquisil:‘on or 'ssue, and are subsequent'y carried at amortised cost
using the effect.ve interest rate method, iess provision for impairment. The
financ'a: assels meet the SPPI lest and are heid in a ‘hold to coliect’ business
mode and therefore ¢ assif'ed at amortised cost.

Impatirment. provisions for current and non-current trade receivabies are
recognised based on the simpiified approach within IFRS 9 using a provision
matr’x in the determinat:on of the felime expected credit losses. During
this process the probabi: 'ty of the non-payment of the trade receivables is
assessed. This probabitity ‘s then muitiplied by the amount of the expected
‘0ss aris'ng from defauit to determine Lhe ifetime expected credit ‘oss

for trade receivabies. The h:stor'ca: ioss rates are adjusted for current and
forward ‘ooking informat.on re-evant to the Group's customers.

For trade receivab:es. which are reported net, such expected credt ‘osses
are recogn’sed within admin:strat’'ve expenses 'n the consolidated statement
of comprehensive ‘'ncome. On confirmation that the trade recelvable wil. not
be co. ectabie, the gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the
assoc.ated provision.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equiva.ents inc udes cash in hand, deposits he:d at cait with
banks, other short term highty iiquid investments with originai maturities of
three months or less.

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Borrowings are initiatiy recognised at fair vaiue net of any transaction
cosls directiy atlributabie to the loan. They are subsequentiy measured at
amortised cost with interest charged to the statement of comprehensive
‘ncome based on the effectlive interesl rate of the borrowings.

Deep discount bonds

Deep discount bonds are redeemabie at their nominai price al maturity.
The discount ‘s charged over the life of the bond to the statement of
comprehens've income and nc.uded within finance expenses.

Warrants

Warrants ‘ssued to shareho.ders as part of an equity fund raise are accounted
for as equily instruments. Details of Warrants are shown in note 21.

Trade and other payables

Compr ses trade payab-es and other short-lterm monelary fabtties, which
are nil'a .y recogrised at fa'r vaiue and subsequent.y carried at amortised
cost using the effective ‘nterest method.
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Share capital

Financia' ‘'nstruments issued by the Group are ciass:f'ed as equity oniy to the
extent that they do not meet the definition of a f'nancial liabil'ty.

The Group's ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.
Deferred taxation k

Deferred tax assets and “abi-ties are recognised where the carrying amount
of an asset or liability in the consolidated statement of financia: position
differs from its tax base, except for differences arising on’

+ the 'nitial recognit’'on of goodwill;

« the ‘nitial recognit'on of an assel or liabiity 'n a transaction which is not
a business combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting or taxable profit; and

+ investmentls in subsidiaries and jointly controtred entities where the

Group is able Lo contro! the timing of the reversa! of the difference and it
‘s probable that the difference wi not reverse in the foreseeabie future,

Recognition of deferred tax assels is restricted to those instances where it is
probabie that taxable profilt w'ii be availabte against which the difference can
be ut'lised.

The amounl of the asset or iabiiity is determined using taxirates that have
been enacted or substant veiy enacted by the reporting date and are
expected Lo apply when the deferred tax ﬁabi!ities/(assets) are settled/
(recovered).

Deferred tax assets and 'iab:-ities are offset when the Group has a iegally
enforceable right to offsel current tax assets and iiabi'ities and the deferred
tax assets and liab’ilies relale Lo taxes ievied by the same tax authority on
either:

+ the same taxabte group company; or

« different group entities which intend either to settie current tax assets
and Habi.ilies on a net basis, or Lo reaiise the assets and settie the
ab iities simuttaneous'y, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax assets or liabitities are expected Lo be setlled or
recovered.

Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Goodwiis arises where a business ‘s acqu'red and a higher amount is paid
for that business than the fair vaiue of the assets and liabilities acquired.
Transaction costs altributabie Lo acquisitions are expensedilo the income
statement.

Goodwil! 's recogn sed as an asset in the statement of finarjciai position and
‘s not amortised bul ‘s subsect to an annua: mparment review. Impairment
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occurs when the carry'ng vaiue of goodw:.' ‘s greater than the recoverable
amount which is the higher of the value in use and fair value less d'sposai
costs. “he present vaiue of the estimated future cash flows from the
separately dentifiab.e assets, termed a ‘cash generating unit’ ‘s used to
determine the fair value iess cost of disposal to caicuiate the recoverabie
amount. The Group prepares and approves forma: tong term bus’ness pians
for its operalions wh ch are used 'n these calcu at'ons.

Brand

Brand names acquired as part of acquisit’ons of businesses are capitalised
separalely from goodw:.’ as intangible assets if their vaiue can be measured
reab'y on init;al recognition and it is probab.e that the expected future
econom.c benefils thal are atiributable to the asset wit. flow to the Group.

Brand names have been assessed as having an indefinite life and are not
amort’sed but are subject to an annual ‘mpairment review. Impa’rment occurs
when the carrying vaiue of the brand name .s greater than the present vaiue
of the est'maled future cash liows.

Property, plant and equipment

Iltems of properly, plant and equipment are nitiaily recognised at cost. As
we " as the purchase price. cost includes direct.y atlributable costs.

Freehoid and is nol depreciated.

Vineyard estabtishment represents the expenditure incurred to prant and
maintain new vineyards unti the vines reach productivity. Once the v.neyards
are produclive the accumutated cost s transferred to malure vineysrds and
deprec.ated over the expected usefui economic iife of the vineyard. Vineyard
eslablishment is nol deprecialed.

Depreciation s provided on al* other items of property, plant and equipment
50 as to write off their carry'ng va-ue over their expected usefu economic
ives. It s provided at the fol'owing rates:

Freehoid buildings 4% per annum straighl “ine

P ant, machinery and motor vehicles 5-25% per annum stra'ght "‘ne
Computer equipment 33% per annum straight ne
Malure vineyards 4% per annum straight =ne

The carrying value of property, piant and equipment is reviewed for
mpairment when evenls or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying vaiue may not be recoverable.

Biological assets and produce

Agrcutura: produce ‘s accounted for under |AS 41 Agr'cuiture. Farvesting of
the grape crop 's ord'nar’.y carr'ed out 'n October. The grapes are therefore
measured at fair va:ue -ess costs to sei .n accordance with IAS 41 w'th any
far va ue gain or 0ss shown n the consoidated statement of comprehens.ve
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income. The fair vaiue of grapes is determined by reference to est:mated
market prices at the time of harvest. Generaly there ‘s no readi'y obtainable
market price for the Group's grapes because they are not sold on the open
markel, therefore management set the vaiues based on their experience
and know edge of the sector inctuding past purchase transactions. ~his
measurement of fair vaiue less coslts to sei’ s the deemed cost of the grapes
that 's transferred into inventory upon harvest.

Under IAS 41, the agricuitura produce ‘s a'so vaiued at the end of each
report ng period, with any fa'r vaiue gain or 0ss shown N the consolidated
statement of comprehens.ve ‘ncome.

Bearer piants are accounted for under IAS 16 and are he'd at cost.

Inventories

Inventor’es are nitial’y recognised at cost, and subsequently al the -ower

of cost and net rea’sab e vaiue. Cost comprises a' costs of purchase, costs
of convers-on and other costs, ‘nciuding operat'ng ‘ease renta:s, ncurred

n bringing the inventor’es to their present ocat’on and condit-on. Grapes
grown ‘n the Group's v.neyards are inciuded n inventory at fair va'ue -ess
costs Lo seb at the po-nt of harvest which is the deemed cost for the grapes.

We ghted average cost is used to determ’ne the cost of ordinariy
‘nterchangeabie items.

Leased assets

Where substantiaisy @ of the risks and rewards .ncidentail to ownership of

a eased asset have been transferred to the Group (3 "finance iease”), the
asset s treated as f 't had been purchased outr’ght. The amount initially
recognised as an asset ‘s the :ower of the fair vaiue of the leased property
and the present vawue of the minimum iease payments payab:e over the term
of the :ease. The corresponding iease commitment ‘s shown as a #abiiity.
Lease paymenls are ana.ysed between capita! and nterest. The interest
e:emenl 's charged to the consoi‘dated statement of comprehens’ve income
over the period of the iease and is calcuiated so that it represents a constant
proport:on of the "ease ab’'ty. "he capita' e;ement reduces the balance
owed to the essor.

Where substantiaily a: of the risks and rewards ‘ncidental Lo ownership are
not transferred to the Group (an “operating 'ease”), the tola’ renta s payabie
under the -ease are charged to the conso':dated statement of comprehensive
‘ncome on a straight-ne bas’s over the -ease term. "he aggregate benefit of
ease ncentives is recogn sed as a reduct’on of the rental expense over the
ease lerm on a stra.ght-"ne basis. During the year £88,000 (2017 £74,000)
n respect of operating eases was capita ‘sed as part of inventor’es.
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Estimates and judgements

The Group makes certa n est’mates and ,udgements regarding the future.
Est:mates and judgements are continual'y eva-uated based on historical
experience and other factors, ncluding expectat-ons of future events that
are be’eved to be reasonab e under the circumstances. In the future, actual
exper-ence may d.ffer from these estimates. The estimales and judgements
that have a significant risk of causing a mater'a adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and ‘abi-'ties within the next financ’al year re'ste are set
out be ow.

Fair value of biological produce

The Group's biciogica produce is measured at la:r vaiue less costs to seli
at the po'nt of harvest. The fair value of grapes s determined by reference
to est'mated market prices al the time of harvest. Generaily there s no
readity obtainab:e market price for the Group's grapes because they are
not so-d on the open market, therefore management set the vaiues based
on their experience and know-edge of the sector inc uding past purchase
transact'ons. Refer to note 13 which provides information on sensitivity
ana.ys s around this

Impairment reviews

The Group s required to test annualiy whether goodwiil and brand names
have suffered any ‘mpa rment. The recoverab’e amount is determined

based on the greater of vaiue in use and fair va:ue ess costs of disposal
caicuat:ons, which requires the estimation of the va.ue and timing of future
cash flows and the determination of a discount rate to calcuwte the present
vaiue of the cash f-ows. Further information ‘s set out in note 11, Management
does not believe that any reasonably possib:e change in a key assumption
wouid resuit n impa.rment.

“he Group s exposed to r'sks that arise from 'ts use of financia. ‘nstruments.
This note describes the Group's objectives, po-c’es and processes for
manag-ng those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further
quantitat've information in respect of these r sks is presented throughout
these f'nancial statements

“here have been no substantive changes ‘n the Group’s exposure to financiat
nstrument risks, its obieclives, policies and processes for managing those
r'sks or the methods used Lo measure them from previous per‘ods uniess
otherwise stated n this nole

Principal financial instruments

“he princpal financ.a. nstruments used by the Group, frony which f'nancia:
‘nstrument risk arises, are as foows:
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Financial instruments -

risk management
(continued)

Bank oans

Deep d'scount bonds
“rade receivab es

Cash and cash equivaents
F'nance -eases

“rade and other payab-es

In add't'on, at the Company ieve.: Intercompany oans.

“he carry ng amounts are a reasonable est:mate of fair vaiues because of the
short maturity of such nstruments or the'r ‘nterest bearing nature.

Liquidity risk

L'qu d ty risk arises from the Group’s management of working cap-ta. and the
finance charges and princ’pa: repayments on 'ts debl instruments It ’s the
risk that the Group w’ encounter difficuity ‘'n meet'ng its financ a ob ‘gatons
as they fa- due.

“he Group's poacy s to ensure thal it wi. a ways have sufficient cash to ai.ow
't to meet ‘ts iabli:ities when they become due. "he qu:dity r'sk of the Group
s managed centra:y by the group treasury funct:on. Budgets are set and
agreed by the board 'n advance, enabiing the Group's cash requirements to
be ant'cipaled.

“he fo owing labie sels out the contractua matur't'es (represent’ng
undiscounted contractua cash fiows) of fnanc’a: ‘abiiilies:

Beiween Beiween Between
Lpwc3d Sand™2 “and2 2andS Overs

nrenths  nonths years years years To:al
At 3" December 20%7 {*CC0 £C0C £:00C £000 F'CCO £'000
Trade and other
payables 170 188 - - - 358‘
Finance leases 15 41 53 39 _ - 1!_18
L.oans and borrowings 28 2,090 40 40 - 2,198
Deep discount bonds - - - 3,390 - 3,390
Total 213 2,319 93 3,469 - 6,094

Beiween Be:ween Between
Lpws dand 2 “and2 2ankdis  Over s

rronths  rronths years years years Tozal
Az $" December 20°8 £'0C0C £'CCC £ GO0 £'000 000 _ fOOO
Trade and other
payables 388 95 - - - 483
Finance leases 13 40 32 7 9?
Loans and @orrowings 29 87 ne 2,095 - 2327
Deep discount bonds - - - 3,390 - 3.390
Total 430 222 148 5,492 - 6,292
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Financial instruments -
risk management
(continued)

Gusbourne PLC Report and Financial Statements 2018

Capital risk management

The Group's obiject'ves when managing cap'ta® are to safeguard the Group's
ab! ity to continue as a going concern in order Lo provide returns for

shareho ders and benefts for other stakeho.ders and to maintain an optimal
cap’tal structure to reduce the cost of capita. In order to maintain or adiust
the capta! structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareho:ders. return capita: Lo shareholders, ssue new shares and ncrease or
decrease debl.

Credit risk

Cred:t r'sk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposilts w’th banks and
financial ‘institutions and the risk of defauit by these institutions. The Group
rev ews the creditworthiness of such financ a: ‘nstitutions on a reguiar basis

to satisfy ‘tself thal such r'sks are mitigated. The Group's exposure to credit
r'sk arises from defauit of the counterparty, with a8 maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amount of the cash and cash equivaients as shown ‘n the
conso:idated statement of financial position.

Credt r'sk also arises from credil exposure to trade customers inciuded in
trade and other receivabies.

“he Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit osses using a ‘fetime expected credit .0ss provision for trade

rece vabies. The expected ioss rates are based on the Group's historica’
credit iosses experienced over the three-year period Lo the period end.Trade
rece:vabe baiances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that the
Group's bad debts are kept to a minimum. The maximum trade credit risk
exposure al 31 December 2018 in respect of trade receivables is £213,000
(2017 £165.000) and due Lo the prompt payment cycle of these trade
receivables, the expected credit loss is neg'gible at £3.000.

Further d'sclosures regard.ng trade and other receivabies are prov'ded in
note 15,
Interest rate risk

“he Group's main debt is exposed to interest rate fiuctuations. The Group
considers thal the risk is not significant in the context of its business plans.
Shouid there be a 0.5% increase in the bank’s :ending rate, the finance charge
in the statement of comprehensive income would increase by £10,000.
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4 Revenue and Segmental Year ended  Year ended
information 31 December 31 December
2018 2017

£'000 £'000

Wine sales 1,277 1,031

Other income m 66

S Loss from operations

48

Revenue 1,388 1,097

The D'rectors consider the Group to have ony one operaling segment.
Detas of the sole operat'ng segment are shown in the consoldated
statement of comprehensive ‘ncome. conso'dated statement of financia.
posit:on and conso:idated statement of cash fiows.

Details of a prior per'od adjustment affecting Revenue for the year ended 31
December 2017 are shown on page 37.

The ana ys's by geograph'ca. area of the Group's revenue is set out as below:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

£'000 £'000

UK 1,209 846
USA 37 m
Other 142 140
1,388 1,097

The D'rectors do not cons'der the Group piaces reiiance on any major
customers.

Loss from operat.ons has been arrived al after charging:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 . 2017
_ i ‘ B _ o E'QOO_ o £'000
Depreciation of propg(t_y, _pl_ggt andﬂegyipme_n( o 638_ ] 479
Staff costs expensed to consolidated statement
of incqmer _ 552 i 310
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Auditor’s remuneration

Staff costs
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
£'000 £:000
Auditor’s remuneration

- Audit: consolidation and parent 39 35
- Audit: subsidiaries 12 12
S1 47
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
£'000 £°000

Staff costs (including Directors) comprise:
Wages and salaries 965 634
Social security contributions and similar taxes 90 63
Pension contributions 32 14
1,087 YA\l

The difference between staff costs expensed to the consolidated statement
of ‘ncome and the tab.e above represent the costs of production staff whose

costs have been added to ‘nventories.

The average number of emp oyees of the Group. ‘nc.uding Directors. during

the year was 32 (December 2017 25).

Drirectors’ remunerat’'on was as foiows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
£'OOQ £'000

The total emoluments of all Directors during the
year was: ] ] ) o
. Emoluments (including benefits) 258 268
_ 7 258 268
C_qqtributions to defingd contribution pension plans 9 7
Total ‘ 267 275
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7 Staff costs (continued)

50

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Total emoluments for all directors excluding
pension contributions:
A Weeber 36 36
M Paul 48 48
C Holtand 79 89
J Pollard 65 72
Lord Arbuthnot PC - -
P Bentham - -
M Clapp 30 23
| Robinson - -
Total 258 268

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Pension contributions
J Pollard 5 4
C Holland 3
The emoluments of the highést paid Director
during the year were: 79 89

“he tota: emoluments for C Folland and J Po!ard inciude benefl'ts to the
vaue of £4,000 (2017 £9,000) and £n~ (2017 £n7) respectivey.

“he Directors are considered to be key management

Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

) £'000 £'000
Key management personnel costs were as follows: ) T
‘S;o.r‘t*term emé;lo;/m;;\t.be-neﬁts o :258 - _'2-65
S—()CEI security contributions . 26 . 24
Géi:w o.n shares issued to directors in the year . - 46
284 332
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8 Finance expenses Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 Decemnber
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Finance expenses

Interest payable on borrowings 104 82
Amortisation of bank transaction costs 4 5
Discount expense on deep discount bond 239 382
Total finance expenses 347 469

9 Taxation There ‘s no current or deferred tax charge for the year (2017: £nil).

Year ended  Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017

£'000 £'000
Loss on ordinary activities before tax 1,767) (1,638)
Loss on ordinary activities at the standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK for the year of 19%
(December 2017: 19.25%) (336) (315)
Effectsko/f: )
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 122 . 106
Unprovided deferred tax movements on short term
temporary differences ] ] 105) (78)
Unrecognised losses carried forward _ B 319 246
Effect of changes in tax rate in prior years - 4

Tax charge/(credit) for the year - -

N\o deferred tax asset has been recognised on unutiiised taxabie iosses

due Lo Lhe lack of certa.nly over the taxabie prof'ts being avaiabie against
wh:ch deductibte temporary differences can be ut.lised n the future though
this remains under review by the directors. The unutiiised tax iosses carried -
forward are £9,003.000 (December 2017- £6,938,000)
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Notes forming part of the financial

statements continued

10 Loss per share Bas:c earnings per ord’nary share are based on a .0ss of £1,767,000

(December 2017: £1.638,000) and ordinary shares 38,265,254 (December
2017 31169.077) of 1 pence each, being the weighted average number of
shares nissue durng the year,

Weighted
average Loss per
Loss number of Ordinary
2000 shares share pence
Year ended 31 December 2018 (1,767) 38,265,254 (4.62)
Year ended 31 December 2017 (1,638) 31,069,077 (5.26)

Gusbourne PLC has Warrants to subscribe for 8,175,216 Ordinary shares of

1 pence each ‘nissue. Of these Warrants, 6,138,699 are exercisab’e at any time
by the Warrant ho'der w'th an exercise price of 60 pence per share unt:

30 September 2019 The rema'ning 2,036.517 Warrants are also exerc'sab'e at
any t:me by the Warrant 10 der, with an exerc’se price of 75 pence per share

unt’ 31 Juy 2021. "hese warrants have not been ncluded 'n the ca:cu at'on of
d’uted earnings per share as they are antid :ul’ve for the periods presented.

11 Intangibles Goodw’ Brand “otai
£°000 £'000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 777 230 1,007
Impairment losses
At 1January 2018 and 31 December 2018 - - -
Net book value T
At 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2018 777 230 1,007

52

“he carry ng vawue of goodw’ and the brand 's a .ocated to Lhe fo .owing
cash-generating un'ts

December  December

2018 2017
£'000 ~ E£'000

Gusbourne Estate 1,007 1,007

“he brand vaiue s the fa r va'ue of the brand name acqu-red as part of the
acqu's'tion of Gusbourne Eslate :n September 2013, and separaley identified
as an ‘nlangible




N Intangibles (continued)

12 Property, plant and
equipment
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Goodw’™ s Lthe premium pa‘d Lo acquire the Gusbourne Estale business over
the fair va‘ue of its nel assets.

Gven the :ong term nature of vineyard estab-'shment and wine production
the Group’'s management prepare «ong term cash f.ow forecasts for up to 9
years. and then app:y a discount rate to determine the present va.ue of the
future cash flows of the cash-generating unit to arrive at the fa:r vaiue iess
costs of d sposa. Where this amount is iower than the carrying vaiue of the
brand and goodw:'t a' ocaled to the cash-generat ng unit an impairment
charge is made. The discounl rate used is 13.8% (December 2017: 131%) based
on the Group's est'mated we ghted cost of cap'ta. A growth rate of 2.5% has
been app:'ed over the term of the long terrn cash f'ow forecasts. “he growth
rate used s based on the ong term average growth rale of the UK economy.

“he discount rate used wouid need to increase to 17.6% to resuil ‘n an
mpa‘rment of the Goodw : .

Cost

At 1 January 2017 5,702 1630 1472 1.938 37 10779
Additions 1080 589 86 ) e 1.783
Transfers - - (695) 695 - -
Disposals . e LT T ; (6
At 31 December 2017 6,792 2,213 863 2,633 55 12,556
At 1 January 2018 6.792 2,213 863 2633 55 12,556
Additions T T R YT
Transfers T - (004 1004 -
Disposals ‘ - ’ S ;_ T '.' T ’P:—_‘ -‘__'——_'
At 31 December 2018 6,866 2,9m . 3,637 84 13,498
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12 Property, plant and Zoanit,
equipment (continued) Soeey A e
ad aad At e [ LR | 15,0
U L A A ST AT Cferen A [ tai
3 . £ 7T [ £ I £ 0%
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2017 159 51 - 154 25 849
Depreciation charge
for the year 94 297 - 82 6 479
Depreciation on
disposals - (3] - - - )
At 31 December 2017 253 806 - 236 3 1,326
At 1 January 2018 253 806 - 236 3 1326
Depreciation charge
for the year 125 389 - 12 12 638
Depreciation on
disposals - - - - - -
At 31 December 2018 378 1195 - 348 43 1,964
Net book value
At 31 December 2017 6,539 1,107 863 2,397 24 1,230
At 31 December 2018 6,488 1,716 - 3,289 41 1534
W'th.n properly, p.ant and equ.pment are assets w'th a carrying va.ue of
£79,000 (2017: £131,000) he d under finance eases.
Durng the year £1,004,000 (2017 - £695.000) of vineyard estab.’shment
cosls were transferred to mature vineyards at cost.
13 Biological produce “he far value of bio:og-ca. produce was:
2018 2017
£'000 - <000
At 1 January - -
Crop growing costs 1.9 1,048
Fair value of grapes harvested and transferred ’
to inventory (1.316) 1,021
Fair value movement in biological produce 125 27

At 31 December -
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13 Biological produce
(continued)

14 Inventories

15 Trade and other receivables
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The fair va ue of grapes harvested is determined by reference to est' mated
market prices ‘ess cost to se : at the time of harvest. "he est:mated market
pr-ce for grapes used n respect of the 2018 harvest 's £2,300 per tonne
(2017. £2.300 per tonne)

A 10% ‘ncrease n the est'maled markel price of grapes to £2,530 per tonne
wou'd result in an ‘ncrease of £132.000 (2017: £102,000) in the fair va'ue of
the grapes harvested n the year. A 10% decrease \n the estimated market
pr ce of grapes to £2,070 per tonne wou:d resu-t in a decrease of £132,000
(2017: £102,000) n the fa:r va:ue of the grapes harvested 'n the year,

A fa'r va ue gain of £125.000 (2017 £27,000 oss) was recorded dur:ng the
year and nciuded within the consoiidated statement of comprehensive
ncome. ~“h s measurement of fa'r value iess costs to sei s the deemed cost

of the grapes Lhat ‘s transferred ‘'nto nventory upon harvest.

December December

2018 2017

£'000 £000

Finished goods 123 90
Work in progress 5,159 3,394
Total inventories 5,282 3,484

Dur.ng the year £449,000 (December 2017. £334,000) was transferred to

cost of saes.

Pr'or Lo harvest, the costs of grow'ng the grapes are ‘ncluded in nventory.

December December
2018 2017
£'000 £'000

Non current assets -
Other receivables o v . 97( ’ o

Current assets . v ’

Trade receivables ‘ » ) 318 l 165
Prepayments ‘ - : 122 T 31
Other receivables“ o T o o 56 o 85
Total trade and other receivables 593 281

“rade and other rece vab es are due within 1 year aparl from £97.000
(December 2017 £n") nc uded w'thin other rece vab:es which ‘s due 'n more

than 1 year.
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15 Trade and other receivables
(continued)

16 Trade and other payables

17 Loans and borrowings

56

“he Group undertakes a cred:t check on any new customers and &'so
mon tors the credit worth'ness of existing customers. If a customer fal's the
cred:t checking process then they are requ’red to make payment up front for

any goods or services.

At 31 December 2018 the ‘ifet'me expected '0ss prov's'on for trade

receivab.es 's 1% (£3.000) - 2017 1% (£2,000). Th's is based on expected

cred't ‘osses from previous osses incurred by the Group.

December December

2018 2017

£'000 £'000

Trade payables 272 13

Accruals 135 194

Other payables 38 10
Total financial liabilities, excluding loans and

borrowings classified as financial liabilities

measured at amortised cost 445 335

Other payables - tax and social security payments 38 23

Total trade and other payables 483 358

Book va ues are approx mate to fair value at 31 December 2018 and

31 December 2017.

December  December
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Curfent liabilities: T T
Bank loans i 34 ‘2059
34 2,059

Non éurrent I}abilifies ’ )
Bank loans 2,059 68
.Dﬂebep 5iscodnt Bonds ' 7 ‘ . 3,(761 o _“_2‘3’2—.‘;.
Total loans and borrowings 4,820 2,590




17 Loans and borrowings
(continued)
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“he Company entered nto an arrangement on 31 May 2018 w'th Lord
Ashcroft KCMG PC to receive a short term unsecured ioan of £1,000.000. The
oan carr'ed ‘nterest for a per'od of 3 months fo:iowing the date of the 'oan
agreement at Lhe rate of 7% per annum above the base rate as var-ed from
t'me to t'me by Barc.ays Bank Pic, and thereafter 10% per annum. “he short-
term oan was repa‘d 'n fur . with accrued 'nterest, on 5 September 2018 as
part cons deration for Lord Ashcroft KCPMG PC's subscription for 4,504,510
new ord-nary shares at £2.7 mion.

“he bank oan of £2,025,000 carries interest at an annua. rate of 3% over
Barcays Bank p ¢ base rate and s due for repayment n fut' ‘'n November
2021. 1t s secured by way of a fixed charge over the Group's .and and
bu'id’'ngs at Appredore, Kent, shown at a cost of £5,390,000 (2017-
£5,390.000) within property. p.ant and equ'pment and a float'ng charge over
a: other property and undertakings.

Other bank ‘oans of £68,000 carry a f'xed interest rate of 6% per annum
secured against certan tems of piant and equipment. This loan 's repayable
v'a monthiy insta:ments over 5 years from January 2016.

“he redemption amount of the deep d'scount bonds s £3,390,000.
redeemab-e on 15 August 2021 Accrued discount of £239,000 has been
charged Lo the statement of comprehensive income during the year.

An ana ys's of the maturity of 1oans and borrowings ‘s given be ow:

December December

2018 2017
e _£000 £'000
Bank loans: o .
Within 1 year ) _ 34 2059
1-2 years | L. 34 34
2-5 years 2,025 34
Deep Discount Bonds: o
Within 1 year oot ; -
1-2 years ; - -
2-5 years 2,761 2,522
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18 Finance Leases December  December
2018 L2017
£000 £'000
The minimum lease payments under finance leases
fall due as follows: ’
Within 1 year 53 56
2-5 years 38 9N
N v 147
Future value of finance lease payments Qn " 8)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 80 '+ 129
Of which: !
Within 1 year 47 49
2-5 years 33 | 80
80 i 129

Finance eases comprise h're purchase agreements which the Group has
used to purchase var.ous items of piant, machinery and motor vehic'es. -

The carrying value of the assets acquired held under these finance eases

amounts to £79,000 (2017: £131,000) and are shown within property. p!a:nt

and equipment (note 12).
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19 Note supporting statement
of cash flows
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Cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash fiows

comprises:
December December
2018 2017
£'000 £000
Cash at bank available 1,307 1,463
Cash on hand 4 1
1L,3M 1,464

Changes ‘n financing activities are shown in the reconciliation of ":ab’\ties

from f'nancing transactions betow:

Non-current Current Non-current Current
oans and :0ans and finance finance
borrowings borrowngs leases teases
£°:000 £'000 £000 £'000
(\ote 17) (\ote 17) (Note 18) (Note 18)
At 1 January 2017 6,322 34 130 51
Cash flows - mo) - . (59)
Non cash flows
- Loans and
borrowings classified
as non-current at
31 December 2016
becoming current
during2017  (2,059) 2,059 (50) 30
- Interest accruing
_in period R 382 ‘76 i - m__z
- Debt converted
into equity (2,055) - - -
At 31 December 2017 2,590 2,059 80 49
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19 Note supporting statement \on-current Current  \on-current Current
of cash flows (continued) oans and loans and {inance f‘nance
borrowngs borrow ngs ‘eases ieases
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(\ote17) (\ole 17) (N\ote 18) (\ote 18)
At 1 January 2018 2,590 2,059 80 49
Cash flows - (92) 40) - (55)
Non cash flows
- Loans and
borrowings classified
as non-current at
31 December 2017
becoming current
during 2018 1,991 (1,991 a7) 47
- Interest accruing
in period 331 6 - 6
At 31 December 2018 4,820 34 33 47

20 Operating lease

commitments operat ng leases are as forows:

“he future aggregate min'mum lease payments under non-cance .abe

December December

2018 2017

) _E‘OOQ - £'000
Operating leases which exp}irek:

Within one year 64 . 64

Within two to five years 259 259

More than five years 2621 2,686

2,944

3,009

“he Group has enterad ‘nto a number of iong term ieases in respect of ‘and
and bu'd'ngs in West Sussex. The Group has p anted vineyards on the ieased

and.

The eases have ‘ives remaning of 44 years (2017: 45 years) and inc'ude
varous terms inc uding regwar break clauses at the Group's option.
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Ord:nary Deferred Ordinary

shares of shares of shares of
SOp each 49p each Ip each
\umber Number Number £'000

Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 2017 23,639,762 N - 1,820

Subdivision of
Ordinary shares of

50p each (23,639,762) 23,639,762. 23,639,762 ) -
Issued for cash during

the year - - 10,506,560 105
Share awards to

directors - - 84,000 1
Bond conversion - - 536,662 51
At 31 December 2017 - 23,639,762 39,366,§84 1,977

Issued for cash during
the year - 6,304,699 63

At 31 December 2018 23,639,762 45,671,683 12,040

On S September 2018 Gusbourne PLC issued, for cash, 6,221,699 new ordinary
shares of 1 pence each at a price of 60 pence per share. These shares were
fut'y subscribed and paid up. Furthermore, 6,221,699 Warrants were ‘ssued

on a 1 for 1 basis to subscribers of new shares, at an exercise price of 60p

per share. The exercise of these Warrants w' be no iater than 30 September
2019,

On 24 Oclober 2018 the Company issued 75,000 new ordinary shares of 1p
each pursuant to an exerc’se of Warrants. A.. Warrants were' exercised at 60p
per share.

On 12 November 2018 Gusbourne PLC ‘ssued 5,000 new ordinary shares of 1p
each pursuant to an exerc’'se of Warrants. Al» Warrants were exercised at 60p
per share. .

On 7 December 2018 Gusbourne PLC issued 3,000 new ordinary shares of 1p
each pursuant to an exerc’'se of Warrants. At Warrants were exercised at 60p
per share. .
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21 Share capital (continued)

22 Reserves

23 Related party transactions
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Gusbourne PLC has Warrants to subscribe for 8,175,216 Qrdinary shares of 1
pence each n issue. Of these Warrants, 6,138,699 are exercisabie al any time
by the Warrant ho der with an exercise price of 60 pence per share unt:; 30
September 2013. The reman'ng 2,036,517 Warrants are aiso exerc-sab'e at any
t:me by the Warrant o der, w'th an exercise price of 75 pence per share until
31 Juiy 2021,

Unexerc'sed Warrants as at 31 December 2018 amount to 8,175,216 Ordinary
Shares of 1 pence each.

“he fo ow.ng describes the nalure and purpose of each reserve with:n equity:

Reserve Description and purpose

Share premium The share premium account arose on the issue of
shares by the Cornpany at a prermium to ther nominal
value, £xpenses of share issues are charged to this
account.,

Merger reserve The rmerger reserve arose on the business
combination and is the difference between the
nominal value of the shares issued and the market
value of the shares acquired.

Retained earnings The retained earnings represent cumulative net gains
and losses recognised in the Group's statement of
consolidated income.

Deacon Streel Partners L'm’ted is considered a re ated party by virtue of the
fact thal Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC, the Company's uitimate conlroi'ng party, is
a.so the uit'mate contro 'ng party of Deacon Street Parlners Limited. During
the year Deacon Street Partners Limited charged the Company in tota:
£78107 (December 2017 - £139,923). Of th's £78,107 re:ates lo management
services (December 2017 - £139,923). There was £18,000 due Lo Deacon
Street Partners Lim:ted as at 31 December 2018 (December 2017 - £23,907).

Devonshire Ciub L'mited, a company connected with Lord Ashcroft KCMG
PC, purchased w.ne from the Group amount'ng to £10131 (2017 - £10,534). A
ba.ance due from Devonshire Ciub Limited of £2,219 (2017 - £1,254) ‘s shown
withn trade receivables.

On 18 June 2018, the Company ‘ent £50,000 to an executive director to assist
w'th a house purchase ‘n the vicinity of the Group's vineyard and winery
operat’'ons in Kent. “he roan ‘s ‘nterest free and repayabie by instaiments from
Juiy 2019 w'th fu: repayment due by May 2024. A baance of £50,000 was
outstand'ng as al 31 December 2018.




23 Related party transactions
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i

On 2 September 2016, the Company issued deep discount bonds with a
subscription price of £4,073,034 together with 2,036,517 separabile warrants
Lo subscribe for Ordinary shares at an exercise price of 75 pence per share,
On 30 June 2017 the Company offered Bondhozders the opportunity to
convert their bonds ‘nto new Ordinary shares at an Issue price of 40p. "he
company announced, on 1 August 2017, that :t rece:ved final acceptances

of 5136.662 Conversion Offer Shares, raising £2,055,000 and result'ng in

a reduction of the fina: redemption amount of the deep discount bonds to
£3,390.,000.

Detai s of re'aled part’es who subscribed for the deep discount bonds and
warrants are shown n Lthe Labie below:-

Deep discount bonds

Accrued Converied Accrued
Balance  discount inze Balance  discoun: Balance
as a3 w3 Ordinary as a1 & 0 % as at 31
Decermber Cecember shares of December Decermber December
Narre 2016 207 1 each 2077 2008 2018
Lord Ashcroft
KCMG PC 2,701,409 231,373 (1,669,500) 1,263,282 120,024 1,383,306
A Weeber 617,928 68,764 . - 686,692 ' 65,243 751,935
| Robinson 102,988 6,903 (109,891) - -
Lord
Arbuthnot PC 10,299 690 (10,989) - -
M Paul 10,299 690 (10,989) - ] -
M Clapp 10,299 690 (10,989) - -

3,453,222 30@,110 (1,812,358) 1,949,974 185267 2,135,241
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Notes forming part of the financial

statements continued

23 Related party transactions
(continued)

Warrants exercisable at 75 pence each

Held as at —eld as at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Name Number Number
Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC 1,311,517 1,311,517
A Weeber 300,000 300,000
| Robinson 50,000 50,000
Lord Arbuthnot PC 5,000 5,000
M Paul 5,000 5,000
M Clapp 5,000 5,000
1,676,517 1,676,517

“he warrants exerc’sab e at 75 pence each are exerc'sab e at any t me unt 31

Juy 2021

On 5 September 2018, the Company issued, for cash, 6,221,699 new ordinary
shares of 1 pence each w'th 6,221,699 separab’e warrants to subscribe for 1
pence Ordinary shares at an exercise price of 60 pence each.

Delai s of reiated part'es who subscribed for warrants are shown ‘n the tabie

be ow:-

Warrants exercisable at 60 pence each

—eld as at

New Warrants Warrants 31 Decernber

1ssucd exercised 2018

Name Nurnber Nurmber Number
Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC 4,504,510 - _450_4_51_0
| Robinson _ 41,6647A ) R __41,§67_
Lord Arbuthnot PC ) 25,000 (25,000) . -
M ﬁaql 83,334 - 8_3.33Q
MClapp . 16,667 - . 16667
P Bentham 83,334 - 83,334
4,754,512 (25,000) 4,729,512

“he warrants exerc sab.e at 60 pence each are exerc’sable at any t' me unt’

30 September 2019,
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24 Subsequent events
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“he Company entered :nto an arrangement on 31 May 2018 with Lord
Ashcroft KCMG PC to receive a short term unsecured ‘oan of £1,000.000. The
oan carr ed nterest for a per'od of 3 months fo' ow ng the date of the .0can
agreement at the rate of 7% per annum above the base rate as var-ed from
t'me to t'me by Barciays Bank Pic, and thereafter 10% per annum. “he short-
term oan was repa’d 'n fu., wth accrued interest, on 5 September 2018 as
part constderation for Lord Ashcroft KCPMG PC's subscription for 4,504,510
new ord'nary shares at £27 miion.

On 9 Apr: 2019, the Group announced that ‘| had entered into a new ‘ong
term farm business tenancy ‘n respect of an addit’‘onal 73 acres of :and
ad;acent to ils existing vineyards in West Sussex “he Company intends to
p:ant add't’'ona! vines on 57 acres of this iand 'n 2020, which are expected

to start producing grapes ‘n 2022. "he lease has a term of 50 years from
September 2019 and w’ ‘ncrease the Company's vineyards in West Sussex to
136 acres. wth the tota- acreage under vine, ‘'nciuding the 152 acres in Kent, of
288 acres foslowing the new piantings.

In order to meet immed’ate working capita: requirements. Llhe Company

(the "Borrower™) entered 'nto an agreement on 31 May 2019 with a company
contro:-ed by Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC (the “Lender™) to receive an unsecured
-oan fac'.’ Ly of up to £2.000,000 (the “Loan Agreement™) which 's repayable
on 31 October 2019, "he -0an faciity may be drawn down in amounts of

no :ess than £250,000 The :0an carries -nterest on the principa! amount
outstanding from time to time at the rate of 10% per annum and at 15% per
annum 'n the evenl of defauit. 7o the extent that the Lender chooses, n its
so.e d'scret’on to exerc’se any warrants it ho ds ‘n the Borrower, the amount
to be subscribed pursuant to such exerc:se (“the Subscription Amount™)

wit. be deemed to be sat’'sfied to the extent of the amount outstanding 'n
respect of the Loan and the amount of accrued but unpaid jnterest at the
time of exercise or, if such amount is greater, Lo the exlent of Lhe Subscription
Amount.

Under the terms of the Loan Agreement, shoud the can not be repaid on

31 October 2019, the -0oan w:.. become repayab e on demand subiect to such
repayment nol being m breach of the Company's existing banking fac'i'ties or
'f such repayment caused the Company to be unabie to meet ‘ts creditors as
they fa.' due.
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Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2018

December December

2018 2017

\ote £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments 4 21,200 -
Other receivables 5 47 17,450
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 ' 18 8
Cash and cash equivalents 13 1.364
Total assets 22,378 18,822
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6 (164) (138)
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 7 (2,761) (2,522)
Total liabilities (2,925) (2,660)
Nét asset-s T ) i ’ T 79;53 o 76?65
Issued capital and reserves attributable to owners
Share capital - 8 12,040 1,977
share premium T 7T T T 7T 7T 79 T 0438 6754
R;etéined earnings ’ ‘ 9 (3,625) (E,SéQ)
Total equity 19,453 16,162

In accordance w th Sect’'on 408 of the Compan’es Act 2006 the Company has not presented its own ncome
statement 'n these financ a. statements. The Company resuils for the year include a oss after tax and before d'v'dends
payab-e of £456,000 (2017 £675,000) which s dea t with n the consolidated fnancia. statements of the Group

The financia! statements were approved and author’sed for ‘ssue by the Board on 31 May 2019 and were s gned on ts
behaf by lan Rob nson

1
lan Rob'nson %

Secretary and Non-Executive Director

“he notes on pages 71to 74 form part of these  nanc-a statements

68




Gusbourne PLC Report and Financial Statements '2018

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2018

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
\ote £'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year before tax (456) (675)

Adjustments for:

Finance expense 239 382
Increase in trade and other payables 6 3 59
Increase in trade and other receivables 57) - -
Gain on shares issued to directors in the year - 40
Cash outflow from operations 271) (194)

Investing activities

(Increase)/Decrease in Intercompany loan 5 (3,727) (3,514)
Net cash from investing activities (3,727) (3,514)

Financing activities )
Issue of ordinary shares® 2,783 3,203

Share issue expenses (36) (162)
Short term loan* 1,000 1,000
Net cash from financing activities 3,747 4,041
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (251) 333

Ca;F\ and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year . 1,364 1031

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 1,364

*Non-cash transaction

The short term iocan of £1.000,000 received n the year ended 31 December 2017 was used as parl séttiement of
monies due under the share subscript’'on wh ch completed 29 June 2017

The short-lerm oan of £1.000.000 rece’ved n the year ended 31 December 2018 was used as part sett ement of
mones due under the share subscript on whch completed on 11 September 2018,

The notes on pages 71to 74 form part of these Manc'a’ statements
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Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018

+ Total

attributab.e

Share Share Retained to equity

capita: premium earnings ho ders

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

1 January 2017 11,820 815 (1,934) 10,701

Comprehensive loss for the year - - (675) (675)

Contributions by and distributions to owners:

Share issue 106 4,098 - 4,204

Share issue expenses - 162) - (162)

Bond conversion 51 2,003 - 2,054

Gain on shares issued to directors in the year - - 40 40

31 December 2017 1,977 6,754 (2,569) 16,162

1 January 2018 1,977 6,754 (2,569) 16,162

Comprehensive loss for the year - - (456) (456)
Contributions by and distributions to owners: '

Share issue 63 3,720 - 3,783

Share issue expenses - (36) - (36)

31 December 2018 12,040 10,438 (3,025) 19,453

The notes on pages 71to 74 form part of these financ’a: statements.
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Notes forming part of the company
financial statements
for the year 31 December 2018

1

2

3

4

Accounting policies

Credit risk

Directors and employees

Investments

Gusbourne Pic (“the Company”) ‘s a company -m’'ted by shares and
registered 'n Eng-and and Wa-es with Lhe reg stered number 08225727. The
Company's registered off ce s Gusbourne, Kenard:ngton Road, Appiedore,
Ashford, Kent, "\i26 28C.

“he fo ow'ng principa. account'ng po.icies have been applied:

Basis of preparation

The parent company financ’a’ staternents are prepared under Internationat
F'nanc a Reporling Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Un’on.
“he Company’s account:ng po:'cies are a-gned w'th the Group's accounting
po.c'es as described 'n note 1 of the Group's conso ‘dated financ'a
statements. Addiliona accounting potlicies are noted below.

Investment in subsidiaries

“he company has an ‘nvestment in two subsid’ar’es. Investments are va:ued
at cost, ess allowances for impairment. Impa:rment revews are performed
annua vy

“he Company s exposed to cred:t risk :n respect of the -ocans recoverab.e
from other Group companies amounting to £n° (2017 £17.450.000) and wi
ony be repa’d once the Group companies are profilab:e.

"he average number of staff employed by the Company during the year
(compr's'ng so:e y of D'rectors) was 8 (2017-18).

Deta’s of Lhe emoiuments of the Directors can be found in note 7 of the
conso ‘dated financia statements.

The fo :owing were the subs diary undertakings at the end of the year:

Proportion of
ownersh'p nterest at

\ame Country of ncorporat on 31 December 2018
Gusbourne Estate Limited Englanq and Wales_ _ 100%
Gusbourne Wines Limited England and Wales 100%

Gusbourne Estate L m'ted 's 'nvo ved ‘n the production, sa e and distrbution
of Eng sh spark 'ng wne Gusbourne Wnes L'm’ted :s dormant

The reg stered address of Gusbourne Estate L-m ted and Gusbourne Wines
L'mted s Kenardington Road, Appiedore, Kent “\26 2BE.

“he ncrease ninvestrment -n the subsid ary, Gusbourne Estale L m'ted, was
an ssue of new shares 'n exchange for the sett ement of intergroup debt at
£21.200,000. “here was no ‘mpact on cash movements in the year ended
31 December 2018.
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Notes forming part of the company
financial statements continued

5

6

7

72

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Deep discount bonds

December  December
2018 2017
£'000 £'000

Non-current assets
Amounts due from group undertakings - 17,450
Trade and other receivables 47 -

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 10 ‘ -
Prepayments and accrued income 8 8
Total current assets 18 ' 8
65 17,458

“he amount due from group undertakings ‘s repayabie on demand. however
g'ven the ong term deve.opment strategy of the Group. 't is not expected to

be rece'ved with'n 12 months.

Incuded n trade and rece‘vabies 's an amount due from a director of
£50,000. £3.000 s due w'th'n one year and £47,000 is due for repayment by
Juy 2024. Further deta™s are shown :n note 11,

December December
2018 2017
£000 000

Current liabilities T T
Trade payables o o ) 59 ’ 21
Accruals and deferred income i 82 — ) .”116
Amounts due to gréuphﬁnd'eréak.ings . ’ 23 ) -
Other payables i R
Total current liabilities 164 138

Deta"s of the deep d'scounl bonds are shown n nole 17 m the Group's

. financ a stalements




8 Share Capital

9 Reserves

10 Ultimate controlling party

1 Related party transactions

12 Subsequent events
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Deta’s the share cap ta of the Company are inc uded ‘n note 21 to the
Group's f'nanc’a: statements.

Deta.:s of the nature and purpose of each reserve w’Lth.n equity are shown in
note 22 to the Group's financ'a: statements,

In the op.nion of the Directors the uitimate contro:ing party at 31 December
2018 ‘s Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC

Deacon Street Partners Lmited is considered a re.ated parly by v'rtue of the
fact thal Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC, the Company's u'limate controi’ng party, is
a:50 the u Lmale contro: 'ng party of Deacon Street Partners Lim’ted. During
the year Deacon Street Pariners Limiled charged the Company ‘n totai
£78,07 (December 2017 - £139,923). Of th's £78,107 reiates to management
serv.ces (December 2017 - £139.923). There was £18,000 due to Deacon
Street Partners Limited as at 31 December 2018 (December 2017 - £23.907).

On 18 June 2018, the Company ‘ent £50,000 to an executive director to assist
w'th a house purchase 'n the vicinity of the Group's vineyard and w'nery
operat'ons ‘n Kenl. The ‘oan s :nterest free and repayable by instaiments from
Juty 2019 with fult repayment due by May 2024. A balance of £50,000 was
outstand'ng as at 31 December 2018.

“he Company entered nto an arrangement on 31 May 2018 with Lord
Ashcroft KCMG PC to receive a shorl term unsecured oan of £1,000.000. The
oan carr'ed niterest for a period of 3 months fol owing the date of the iocan
agreement at the rate of 7% per annum above the base rate as varied from
time to time by Barcrays Bank Plc, and thereafter 10% per annum. The short-
term 1oan was repad n fur, with accrued interest, on 5 September 2018 as
part consideration for Lord Ashcroft KCPMG PC's subscription for 4,504,510
new ord nary shares at £2.7 m.ion.

In order to meet ‘mmed:ate working capitai requirements, the Company

(the "Borrower™) entered into an agreement on 31 May 2019 with a company
contro ied by Lord Ashcroft KCMG PC (the “Lender”) to receive an unsecured
oan fac ily of up to £2,000.000 (Lhe “Loan Agreement”) which 's repayable
on 31 Oclober 2019. The oan facitity may be drawn down i amounts of no iess
than £250.000. "he .0can carr'es ‘nterest on the princ'pa amount outstanding
from t'me to t'me at the rate of10% per annum and at 15% per annum ‘n the
evenl of defauil. To the extent that the Lender chooses, nits sole d'scret:on
to exerc’se any warrants 't hoids in the Borrower, the amount to be subscribed
pursuant lo such exerc’se (“the Subscription Amount”) wiii be deemed o be
sat’sf"ed to the extent of the amount outstand’'ng 'n respect of the Loan and
the amount of accrued but unpaid interest at the { me of exerc se or, f such
amount ‘s grealer, to the extent of the Subscript on Amount.
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Notes forming part of the company
financial statements continued

12 Subsequent events Under the terms of the Loan Agreement, shouid the ;0an not be repaid on
(continued) 31 October 2019, the oan wi” become repayab-e on demand sub,ect to such
repayment not being ‘n breach of the Company’'s exist ng banking faciiities or
if such repayment caused the Company to be unable to meet ‘ts creditors as
they fa.- due.
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Pubiic mited company

Directors
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| G Robinson
Gusbourne
Kenardington Road
App‘edore

Ashford

Kent
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Auditors

BDO LLP

55 Baker Street
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WIU 3&U
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London
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Solicitors
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Free “rade Exchange Levei 5
37 Peler Street
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Bankers

Barc'ays Bank PLC
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Kent

MEIQ 4UY
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Our processes, both in establishing and maintaining the
vineyards and in making wine, continue to follow the
rigorous principles of careful site selection and attention to

detail in all aspects of viticulture and wine production.
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